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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Vision Statement

To be a dynamic, profitable and growth oriented Company.

Mission Statement

The mission of the Company 1s to prudently utihize the human resources and plant and machinery
mn order to achieve high levels of sustamable profitability and growth by:

o offeringhigh class products and services to all our customers.
e  Building a long term relationship with our customers, suppliers and other stake holders.

e Continuously upgrading the latest production facilities to achieve higher levels of
operational efficiency and develop potential as well as performance.

® Nurturing a work culture that generates creativity, enthusiasm, professionalism and
feamwork.

e  Maintaining the highest standards of ethics, safety and environment.
e  Contributing towards the economic development of the country.

e  Beinga good corporate citizen by fulfilling our social responsibilities.
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that the 39 Annual General Meeting of Nadeem Texllle Mills Limited (the *Company™) will be held on
Thursday, November 27, 2025 at 3:45 pm. at registered office %01-804. 8™ Floor. Lakson Square Building No.3. Block-A,
Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi, to transact the Tollowing business;

Ordinary Business:

1 To confirm the Minutes of Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27 November, 2024,

2, To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the company for the vear ended 30" June, 2025
together with the Directors’ report, Auditors” Reports and Chairman’s Review Report thereon.

x To appeint external auditors for the next financial vear ending June 30, 2026 and fix their remuneration,

4, special Business:

To ratify the transactions caried out by the Company with related parties as disclosed in the Financial Statements for the
yeur ended June 30, 2025 by passing the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions;

“RESOLVED that the related parties transactions carried out by the Company with Nadeem International (Pvi.) Led,
and directors of the ¢company being related parties during the year ended June 30, 2025 be and are herely appraoved.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company may carcy oul transactions mcluding, but not lnnited 1o, the
sale/purchase of yarn, sale/purchase of cotton/fibre, reprocessing ol varns, rentlease of assets, sale/purchase of
machinery and equipment and other necessary goods, including receipt, with related parties from time to time for the
fnaneial year 2025-26 and loan received from and return to the related parties.

5, T transact any other business with the permission of the chairmaon,

Mnrc:mer the nnlic:. ai:}ng with s!.uernr:nt of materiol fact have been dispatched to the shareholders by post and uploaded / placed

Karachi: By order of the Board

November 005, 2025 # Company Sceretary

NOTES:

1. The share ronsfer books of the Company will remum elosed from November 21, 2025 w November 27, 2025 (both days
inclusive ).

2. A member entitled o attend and vote at the General Meeting s entitled to appoint another member as his'her proxy o attend
anid vore instead of him'her. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

3. The instrument appeinting a proxy, in order to be valid must be received al the Head Office of the Company at A -801-804,
Lakson Square Building MNo.3, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi, not less than forty eight (487 hours before the time fixed for
the mecting,

4. Any individual Beneficial Ovwner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring his'her participant [D
number and accountsub aceount number along-with origimal Computerized National 1dentity Card {CNIC) or passport at the
me of anending the meeting o prove histher identity and in case of Proxy must enclose additionally an attested copy of
his/her CNIC or Passport, Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual decuments required for such purpose.

5. CDC Account Holders will also have to follow the puidelines laid down in Civeular No. | dated Jameary 26, 2000 issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,

. Members are requested to immediately inform of any change in their addresses to our Share Registar, M/S Hameed Majeed
Associates (Pvt.) Lid., 4™ Floor, Karachi Chambers, Hasrat Mohani Road. Karachi.

7. Submission of copics of CNIC and NTN Certificate (Mandatory)

Pursuant to the directive of ihe Securties & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), Dividend Warrant shall mandatory
bear the Computerized National Wdentity Card (ONIC) numbers of sharcholders,  Sharcholders ave therefore requested to
fulfill the statutory reguirements and submit a4 eopy of their CNIC (if not #lready provided) te the Company’s Share
Registrar, Hameed Majeed Associates { Py} Lid.. Karachi. without any delay.

In case of non-availability of & valid copy of the Sharcholders” CNIC in the records of the Company, the company shall
withhold the Dividend in terms of Clause (a) of proviso under Section 243(2) of the Companies Act 2017, which will be
relessed by the Share Registrar, only upon submission of a valid copy of the CNIC in compliance with the aforesaid SECP
directives.
2. Unclaimed Dividend

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not chaim their dividend, if any, are advised 1o contact our Share Registar: Mis
Hameed Mageed Associates (Pv) Lid, Karachi Chamber, Hasral Mohani Road, Karachi to collect ¢ enguire thelr unclaimesd
dividend, if any,

Ial
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In compliance with section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure all such
dividend outstanding for a period of three years or more from the date due and pavable shall be deposited 1o the Federal
Ciovernment in case of unclaimed dividend, shall be delivered to the SECE.

Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Accounts:

As per Section 72 ol the Companics Act, 2017 every existing company shall be required to replace it physical shares with
book-entry torm in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period not
exceeding four yeurs from the commencement of the Companies Act, 2007, The shareholder having physical sharcholding
may open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or investor's account directly with the CDC to place their physical shares
into sceip-less form. This will facilitate them in many ways including safe custody and sale of shares. anytime they want as
the trading ol physical shares is not permitled a5 per existing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Lid,

10. Ballot Paper

11,

Postal Poll paper is available for download from the website of Madeem Textile Mills Ltd. at

www nadeem.com.pk Sharcholder may download the ballot paper from websile or use an onginal / photocopy printed
in annual reports,

Placement of Financial Statements on YWebsite:

The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 along with reports have been placéd on the

website of the Comgany: httpswww.nadeem.com.pk

12, Circulation of Annoal Report through QR Code and Throogh Weblink.

In sccordance with the Section 223 of the Companics Act, 2017 and pursuant to SRO 3BNIV2023 dated 21" March, 20230f
the Securties and Exchange Commission, the Company has obtained Sharcholders approval in the Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on 27" November, 2023 io circulate the Annual Report of the Company {0 Members through QR
enabled Code and  Weblink. The Annual Report 15 available through  following OR Code and Weblink,

13, Distribution of Gif'ts

Asrequired by SRO452 dated March 17, 2025, no gifts shall be distnbuted at the General Meetings,

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This stabement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business, given as agenda item mo. 6 of the Notice to be
teansacted at the 39™ Annual General Meeting of the Company.

ITEMS NO. 5 OF THE AGENDA:

MNadeem Textile Mills Limited is engaged in manufacture and sale of yarn, The Company in the normal course of business
carries oul transactions with its associsted entitics, Summary of transactions carmied out during the year with the associated
entities is as follow:

SN‘B. Name of Associated Undertaking e of Transactions Rupees
i Madeem Imternational (Pvt) Lid. Loan Received 200,300,004
2 | Nadeem Inernational (Pvi) Lid. | Loan Re-Paid B300,000
3 Madesn International (Pvi) Lid Balunwe outstanding 46,650,000
4 Mr. Lahid Mazhar Loan Received 132 000,000
5 Mr. Zahid Mazhar Bulanee omtstanding 227 004,000
|6 | Mr. Hassan Bin Zahid Balance outstanding 4,300,000
7 Mrs. Naila Zahid Loan received LR EIRNT Y
8 Mrs, Noila Zahid Bulanee outstanding 100 D00 000

Mr. Zahid Mazhar. Mr. Omer Bin Zahid, Mr, Hassan Bin Zahid and Mrs, Naila Zahid are Directors of Nadeem Textile Mills
Limited and are also Directors of Nadeem International (Private) Limited,

All related party transactions, during the year 2023, were reviewed and approved by the Audit Commmittee and the Board in their
respective mectings. The transactions with related parties were carried out at arm's length prices determined in accordance with
the comparable uncontrolled prices method,

The above concerned Directors abstamed while the Board approved the shove transactions in accordance with the reguirement of
refevant provision of the Companies Act, 2007 and listed Companies (Code of Corparate Governance) Regulations 2007,

I'he above transactions with related parties are an ongoing process and will also remain continued in future.

None of the Dircetors other than the above concerned directors have any direet or indireet interest in the above mentioned
associated entities and have no interest in the above business, other than sharchelders ol the Company.

=1
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 1 hereby present the annual review report of the Company for the vear ended
June 340, 2025.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

I'he Board is responsible for overall direction, policy formulation, supervision, and compliance with applicable
laws, Its functions are defined under the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019,

BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board comprises a mix of experienced and young professionals with expertise in textiles and corporate
management. The Board formed the Audit Committee and the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee to
ensure sound governance. Both committees worked independently and fulfilled their responsibilities in accordance
with statutory requirements,

BOARD PERFORMANCE AND EVALUATION

The Company adheres to the highest standards of corporate governance and fully complies with the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
regarding the structure, meetings. and procedures of the Board of Directors and its Commuittees. In line with these
regulations, the Board has also established an annual performance evaluation system, which ensures compliance
with all legal and regulatory requirements related o its procedures, meetings, and responsibilities.

The Board met regularly to review quarterly, half-yearly, and annual results, monitor risks, and guide management.
Decisions were aligned with long-term goals and shareholder value.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company promoted ethical practices, workplace safety, employee welfare, and environmental sustaiability,
while also supporting community development within available resources.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board emphasized strong internal controls and nisk management. The Audit Committee regularly reviewed
these systems, and auditors confirmed their satisfactory operation.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
Employees remain central to our success, Training, carcer development, and safe working conditions were
prioritized during the year.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
Despite various challenges such as energy shortages, inflation, and global demand {luctuations, the Board is
confident that prudent policies, cost efficiency, diversification, and technology upgrades will sustam growth and
compelitiveness.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
On behalf of the Board of Dircctors, [ want to sincerely thank all our employees for their hard work and
contributions, 1 also appreciate our sharcholders, customers, suppliers. bankers, and other stakeholders for their
ongoing trust and support,

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors,

Mol Zadaaad

Karachi NAILA ZAHID
Dated: Movember 05, 2025 Chairperson
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Dear Shareholders,

The Directors of the Company hereby present the andited financial statements of the Company for the vear ended June
3, 2025, rogether with the Auditor's Repart therean,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Dwuring the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2025, the Company made a sales tumover of Rs. 4.89 billion showmg a decline of 57.04%
compared o last vear's wmover of Rs, 11,39 hallion, The Company meurred a net loss after tax of Bs. 1,191 million during the
periedd. This adverse result is primarily due to the increase in the cost of raw niaterials, fuel & power, and other costs of doing
business,

The following table summarizes the Company's financial results for the vear ended June 30, 2025, along with comparative
figures for the previous vear

Rupees in Million
2025 24
Sales 489318 11,391.09
Grossprofiti(loss) | {527.18) 6562
Ciross profit / (Loss) % to Sales {10.77%%) (15 7%
Profit / { Loss) betore tax (1,277.35) (894,81}
Profit / {Loss) after tax (1,190,94) (9a1.78)

BREAK-UP VALUE AND EARNING PER SHARE
The break-up value per share as at June 30, 2025, was Rs: 12942, compared to Rs, 12694 as at June 30, 2024, The loss per
share for the year ended June 30, 2025, was Rs. (36.00) compared 1o Rs. (45.22) for the vear ended June 30, 2024,

DIVIDEND

The Board has not recommended any dividend due to working capital requirements and the Company’s (inancial performance
durmng the year.

OVERVIEW

The overall business environment in FY 2023 remained extremely challenging, Although the State Bank of Pakistan started
reducing policy rates in the second half of the year, the benefit could not be fully realized due o escalating energy costs,
rising labar costs and depressed demand in international textile markets due to global slowdawn.

The textile sector of Pakistan, being the largest export-oriented industry, experienced one of its most difficult vears, Many
mills curiniled operations or reported losses. Declining export orders, together with reduced domestic cotton availability,
further aggravated the situation.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE
The Company produced 9.22 million Kgs. of 20/s count of spun yam during the yvear compared to 1983 million Kgs. of
previous year, showing a decrease of 53.50%, Production had to be curtailed due to high input costs, shortage of quality
cotton, and poor market conditions,

PRESENT AND FUTURE OUTLOOK
Pakistan’s cotton production has been on o declining trend duoe to:

Climate change impacts

Livwer acreage nnd productivity

Pest attacks and low-quality seeds

s Ineffective government supporl policies.

During FY 2025, the country's cotton production stood at around 5.5 million bales agamst domestic demand of 10-11
million hales, forcing heavy reliance on costly imports. The recent floods in Pakistan have severely affected the cotton
belt, damaging standing crops. washing away fertile soil, and disrupting the sowing cyvele for the next season, This
natural calamity is expected to lower both the acreage and vield of cotton in the upcoming crop year,

Despite n difficult yvear, certain positive signals emerged in the latter part of FY2025;

=1
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o Inflationary pressures started to case
#  The PKR showed relative stability
»  Interest rates trended downward

Going forward, we expect that with effective policy suppont for energy pricing, cotton sector revival, and expori
facilitation weasures, the Company will gradually refurn to profitability. Management is taking proactive steps,
ncludmg financial restructuring, cost rationalization. and productivity improvements. fo strengthen the Company’s
financial stability and long-term sustainability,

EXPANSION AND MODERNIZATION
In line with the policy of continuous balancing. modernization, and replacement {BMR). the Company has planned the
following projects o improve efficiency and reduce reliance on costly encrgy:

+  Installation of a IMW Solar Power System:
+  Addition of Open-End Spinning Machimery for productivity enhancement.

HUMAN RESOURCE

Management places strong emphasis on teamwork and acknowledges the vital role of employees in achieving the
Company's objectives, To support this, a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HRE&R Committes), comprising
three members as disclosed in the Company's information, has been constituted, Based on the Committee's
recommendations, management has developed a team of skilled professionals and continues tw sirengthen the work feree
throwgh training initiatives and the reeruitment of qualified personnel.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is the manufaciure and sale of yam.

PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Board of Directors recognizes that effective identification, assessment, and management of risks are essential 1o
safeguard the Compuny’s assels and ensure sustuinable performance, The principal risks faced by the Company and 1he
mitigating measures adopted are summarized below;

1. Market and Demand Risk:
The textile sector is sensitive to fluctuations in local and intemational demand, exchange rate movements, and changes
in global trade policies. The Company mitigates these risks by maminining a diversified customer base, focosing on
quality enhancement, and continuoushy exploring new markets,

2. Raw Material Price Volatility:
Cotton prices are subject to seasonal varations and international market trends. The Company manages this risk
through timely procurement strategies, maintaining optimal inventory levels, and close menitoring of market
developments,

3. Energy Cost and Supply Risk:
Rising energy larifls and inconsistent power supply pose a significant cost and production risk, The Company is
muitigating this through investment in energy-efficient svstems and aliermative energy sources, incloding solar energy
projects,

4. Financial and Liquidity Risk:
The Company faces risks related to inferest rate fluctuations and working capital management. These are managed
through prudent financial planning, maintaining adegquate banking facilities, and continuous monitoring of cash fows.

5. Repulatory and Compliance Risk:
The Company is exposed to changes in tax laws, labor regulations, and environmental compliance requirements. A
robust internal control system and periodic compliznce reviews ensure adherence wo all applicable laws and regulations
in Pakistan,

6. Operational and Human Resource Risk:
The Company relies on skilled manpower for efficient operations. To mitigate this, continuous Iraining programs,
employee retention inibiatives, and workplace safety measures are in place.

GOING CONCERN BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial stalements of the Company tor the year ended June 343, 2025 have been prepared on the going concern basis,
This assumption is kased on the Company’s ability to continue its operations in the foreseeable future and o meet iis
financial obligations s they full due,

The management has carefully assessed the Company’s financial position, performuance, and future cash flow projections,
The Company has successfully maintained adequate banking facilities, including short-term and long-term financing
armngements, to support its working capital and operational requirements,

(3] :
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The management is cognizant of the Fietors that resulted in lower orders and gross loss and curtailment of its operations to
prevent further losses. Subsequently, it has recejved good number of arders from exports and local buyers in the post of
reporting period as a result of stability incotion prices and the Company expects that the reduction i policy rate by SBF and
other cost culting measures will enable it to earn gross profil and profit afier wx in the following vear as compared to the
gross loss and loss after tax incurred during the current year. [t 15 also i the course of installation of 0 3 MW solar power
system to lower energy costs and improve operational efficiency,

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is annexed.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
The Bodrd is committed to maintsin a high standard of eomporate governance. The Board has reviewed the Code of Comporate
Governance and declares that:

s The financial statements, together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act
2017, These statements present Gurly the Company's stite of affairs, results of its operations, cash fow. comprehensive
incone and changes in equity,

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment,

o The Internaticnal Avcounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of financial
stalements,

o The svstem of Intemal Control s gound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitoned, The process of
review and monitoring continues with the object to improve it further,

*  There is no significant doubt upon the Company’s ability {0 continue as o going concern.

* There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing
regulations,

s The key operating and financial data for the last six years in a summarized Form is anhexed.

o Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes o the aceounts,

s The Company entered in arm-length transactions with other members of the group. These tansactions are in
compliance with the directives issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan in this regard.

o Al the directors of the company are registered as tax-payer and none of the company™s directors is in defauli of
payment of any ducs to-a banking company, DF], NBFI or Stock Exchange,

= None of the dircotors of the company is sorving on the Board of 7 or more listed companies,

+  The company operates an unfunded gratity covering all its employees who have completed their qualifying period.
Provision is made annually to cover current obligations under the schene. The company has adopied the revised [TAS 19,

s Trading in the shares of the Company during the vear by the Directors, Chiel Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children are mentioned in the annexed pattern of sharcholding.

SUSTAINABILITY, EQUALITY AND CSR
The Company i5 strongly committed to sustainability and corporate social responsibility. We aim to make a positive
impact on society and the envitonment by fostering a healthy workplace and fully complying with wx regulations,

i Health, Safety and Environment:
We are committed to providing a safe and healthy working environment for our employees, The Company
contributes regularly toward health and retirement benefits for its workers,

ii. Business Ethies:
Management 18 committed 1o conducting all business activities with integrity, honesty, and full compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. A Code of Conduct has been developed and approved by the Board of
Directors to provide guidance in these matters.

i Energy Savings:
Management is conmitted o energy conservation, We have implemented several measures, sueh as installing
energy-cllicient devices, and we continue 0 educate employees on varipus methods 0 reduce unnecessary
energy consumplion.

iv. Equality:
We provide equal opportunities to all employees without diserimination and encourage female participation in
a safe, respectful, and inclusive workplace.

Nl
. [io}



Nadeemy

BOARD MEETINGS
During the penod under review, 4 meetings of the Board of Directors were held and the following were m attendance:
Name of Directors No. of Meetings Attended
I Mr., Zahid Mazhar 4
2 Mr, Omer Bin Zahid 4
3, Mr Hassan Bin Zahid 4
4, Mrs, Naila Fahid 4
5. Mrs. Anam Omer 4
6, Mrs. Shafia Hassan 4
7. Mr. Wagar Hassan Siddiqui 4
8, Mr, Nadeem Ahmed 4
Y, Mr. Moor Muhammad 4
COMPOSITION OF BOARD
Directors Numbers
(a8} Male (ifa
(b) Femule 03
Compuosition Numbers
(a}  Independent Director 03
(b}  Other Non-Executive Directors 03
{c)  Executive Directors 03

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Company has one associated company namely “Nadeem International (Pvt) Lid,”

All transactions with related partics were conducted at arm’s length and in full compliance with the best practices of
transfer pricing outlined in the Listing Regulations. The Board of Directors approved these wansactions based on
recommmendations from the Audit Committee,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In lime with the Code of Corporate Governance, the company has formed an audit commitiee consisting of three members, as
listed in the company information, This committee has set up an internal audit function o oversee and assess the
effectivencss and application of internal controls st all levels,

DIRECTORS® REMUNERATION

The Chicl Exeeutive and direclors have waived their meeting fees, The remuneration of Executive Direetors s subject to
approval by sharcholders ot the General Meeting, based on recommendations from the Human resoiree and Remuoneration
committee and the Board of Directors.

Details of Directors” remuneration are disclosed in Note 41 of the Financial Statements as of June 30, 2025,

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Company’s auditors, M/s Rahman Sarfarae Rahim Igbal Rafig, Chartered Accountants, will retire ot the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting. They are eligible for reappointment and have offered to serve as auditors for the next term,

The Board of Directors recommends their reappointment as avditars of the Company for the vear ending June 30, 2026, as
suggested by the Andit Committee.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding of the company as at June 30, 2025 is annexed.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

The Directors of the Company endorse the contenis of the Chainman’s review, which 18 deemed 10 be a part of the Direcior's
report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board of Directors would like to thank our shareholders,. valued clients, and bankers for their engoing support and
conperation throughout the year. The Directors also extend their singere appreciation to the Company s staff and workers for
their continued hard work and commitment.

for and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

G St oz

Karachi; ZAHID MAZHAR OMER BIN ZAHID
Dated: November (15, 2025 Chiet Exmmve Drirector
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—
Key Operating & Financial Data
For the Period From July 2019 To June 2025
PERIODS Jul - Jun Jul - Jun Jul - Jun Jul - Jun Jul = Jun Jul - Jun
2024-2025 2023-2024 2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-2021 2019-2020
Net Sales Revenue 4.893,178,341 | 11,391,0083,506 | 10,666,652,880 | 13,775,867,794 | 0,494 360,590 | 6,792,767 434
Cost Of Goods Sald 5.420,361,241 | 11,325471,765 | 10,156,646,606 | 11,457,286.295 | £,166,931,512 | 6,172,618,355
Gross Profitf{Loss) (527,182,800 65,621,741 510,006283 | 2318581496 | 1327429078 | 613,145,039
Operating ProfitiLoss) (781,732, 767) (296,3593,270) 153,491,530 | 1,946.001.890 | 1.064,253,153 | 443,112,207
Profit/{Loss) Before Tax {1.277.350,897) (894 B15,683)|  (584,066,958)| 1,384,930,950 758,174,988 | 105,521,813
Profiti{Loss) After Tax {1.190.942,125) (961,780,694)| (588977448} 1213984141 f35,868,823 17,544,745
Paid Up Capital 212,667,350 212 667,350 212,667,350 215,119,850 215,119,850 | 192,119,850
Current Assets 2.150,831,563 | 3.916793,071 | 4.551.240,382 | 5152,573.608 | 3.226528,764 | 3.606,835263
Current Liabilities 3453318610 | 4,175368,172 | 3,504 062728 | 3562665783 2381107605 | 3,318504,503
14,000 -
TURNOVER
12,000
Yoar Sales in (M)
2025 4,893 10.000
024 11,381 8,000 1
2023 10,667
2022 13,776 6,000
2021 9,404 4,000
2020 6,793
2,000 A
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
Cost of Sale
RUPEES PERCENTAGE 1177%
Cost of Sala 5.420.361,241 110.77%
Operating Expenses 254 549 867 5.20%
Other Expenses + Financial 405,618,130 10.13% Uperating
Expenses
Taxation (86,408,702} “1.77% 5 02%
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (1,190,942, 185) -24.34%
TOTAL 4,803,178,341 100.00%
Cither
= Expenses +
Profit After Finamcial
Ta Taxation . yp 13
24.34% A77%
7l
" {16] =
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2025

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
{“the CCG Regulations™} i the following manner;

1. The wotal number of directors is nine (including the Chiel’ Executive OfTicer), as follows:

a.  Male i
b Female 3
2. 'The composition of the Board is as follows:
. Category | Names !
Indepentdent Directors M. Moor Muhammud

Mr, Wagar Hassan Siddiqui
Mr. Mindeem Ahmed
Excentive Dircctors Mr, Zahid Mazhar (CED)
Mr, (hmer Bin Zabnd
Mr, Hassan Bin Zahid
Mon-Exccutive Directors Mrs. Naila Zahid {Lha!rpr:rmm
Mrs. Anmm Omer
..... Mrs. ShafiaHassan |
TFemale Directors Mrs, Nula Zuhid {Chairperson)
Mrs. Annm Cimer
| Mrs. Shafia Hassan

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under the Compaonies Act, 2017 (“the Act™),

3.  The directors hove confirmed that nene of them s serving as o director on more thin seven listed companies, mieluding this
COMpaRy.

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it
throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed o vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company, The
Boprd hes ensured thot o complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their dute of approvil or
updating is musintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the Board hiave been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board £
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

T The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chatrperson, and in her absence, by a director elected by the Board for
this purpose, The Board has complicd with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect o [requency,
recording. and circulsting minutes of the mectings of the Board. Except for the Boord meeting for the first quarter ended
September 30, 2024, which was held later than scheduled. the Company’s books of accoumt had not been tinalized due o

delays in completing the annwal aecounts for the year ended June 30, 2025, The delay was mamly cavsed by the health issues
of a key staff member, and the extension had been duly approved by the SECP.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these
Regulations.

9. Out of mne directors, seven directors bave either obtained certificate of Director’s trainimg program or are exempt from the
requirement of Director's Training program a8 per the Listed Companies { Code of Corporate Governance) regulalions 2009,
During the year. no Director’s training program was armanged.

10. There was ne mew appointment of Chiel Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the wear.
However, all such appointments including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employvment were duly approved
by the Board and complicd with relevant requirements of the Regulations,

11, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Execotive officer duly endorsed the financial staements before approval of the Board,
12. The Board has formed Committees comprising of members given below:

Committee Mame of members and Chairman

{a) At Committee Mr, Wagar Hassan Siddigui (Chairman)

Mrs. Anam Omer (Member)
Mrs. Shafia Hassan {Member)

{17} .
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14.

15,

16.

17,

1.

{b} HRE&R Commitles Mr. Nadeem Ahmed [ Chairman)
Mrs. Anam Omer { Member)

Mrs. Shofia Hossan ( Member)

. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committzes have been formed, documented and advised o the comminges for

complinnee:
The frequency of meetings of the committees were s per following:

Committes
fa) Audit Committee

Frequeney of meetings

Four meetings were held during the finaneial year ended June 30, 2025,

However, no meeting was held during the first quarter of the said financial vear for the same
reason as mentioned in paragraph 7 of the Statement of Compliance

b} HR&R Commitles

The Board has setup an effective internal sudit function manned by competent personnel who are considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory ratng onder the Cuality
Contral Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistm and regestered with Aodi Owversight Boord ol
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in comphance with Infernational Federaton of Accountants (IFAC) gudelines on
code of cthics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of Pakistan and that they and the pariners of the firm
mvalved in the audil are nol a close relative (spouse, parenl, dependent and not-dependent children) of the Chief Exceulive
Officer, Chiel Finpneial Officer. Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the company;

The statutory asditors o the persons associated with them have not been appointed 1o provide other services except
sveordance with the Act, these Regulutions or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors: have confirmed that they
have ohserved IFAC guldelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7. 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the CCG Regulations have been complied

Annually

with.

19, We confirm that all other requiremnents of the Regulations have been complied with except as explaincd below:

Commities Reg, No. Explanation
Nomination Commitice;
The Board may constitule 8 separite 201} The Board is eurrently handling the responsibilities typically assigned
committes; designated ns the nomimation to o Momination Committes directly at the Hoard level, Given this
committee, of such mumber and class of cffective management, the establishment of a separate Nomimation
directors, as i may deem approprate in Committee i nol deemed necessary o this time. The Board will
it circumslonees, contimue lo-eviduate the need for such oocommitiee s circamsaneey

gl ve,

Risk Muanspement Committee:
The Board may constiute  the sk 30y The Board 15 eorrently handling the responsibilifies typmcally assigned
mandgement committes, of such mumber 0 Risk Monagement Commitiee directly nt the Board level. (iven
and closs of dircctors, as 0 may deem this effective mampgement, the establishment of & separale Risk
appropriate inits gircumstanges, o camy Management Commitiee is not deemed necessary ot this time, The
oul 8 review of effectivencss of nisk Board will continue Lo evaluate the need for such o commitlee as
management procedures and present a circumstances evolve.
report Lo the Board.
Sostainability Commiftee:
In wrder o uITm:I:i\ruI:,r di:ﬂ,‘.hun_._{;: its 10A {5) Al present, the Board s mint established & Soparie Suﬂtu{rmhilily
sustnability reluted duties, the bourd Commutles, and it5 responsibilities ore being undertaken directly by
may establish o dedicated sustwinability the Board. Oversight of the sustninability risks and DE&I strategies is
commmittee having ot least one female ensured by the Board, and performance against these targets s
directar o assigm aullitionnl eeported in the Directors” Report, The Board will continue 1o review
responsibilitics o an existing  bBoard and eviluate the necessity of constituting such committee in light of
cofnmittes. The commitiee shall monitor luture requirements,
and review sustainobility related nsks
und apporiunities of the company,

N ol el

for and om behalf of the board of Dircetors

el

Karnchi: NAILA ZAHID ZAHID MAZHAR
Date! Movember 05, 2025 Chatrperson Chief Executive
{1g]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of M/s. Nadeem Textile Mills Limited

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Comporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (‘the Regulations’) prepared by the Board of Directors of M/s. Nadeem Textile Mills Limited (‘the
Company'} for the year ended Jume 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 26 of the Regulations,

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review whether the Statement of Complianee reflects the status of the Company’s complianee with the provisions of
the Regulations, and report if it does not. and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inguries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As d part of our audit of the finaneial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sulficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors” statement on internal control covers all risks and ¢ontrals or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company o place belore the Audit Commiltee, and upon recommendation of the Audil
Commitiee, place before the Beand of Dircetors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only
required and have ensured compliance of this reguirement o the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by
the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Commitiee,

Based on our review, nothing has ¢ome to our atlention which causes us to believe thal the Statement of Complinnce does
not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Compuany for the year ended June 20, 2025,

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as stated in the baelow-
referred paragraphs of the Statement of Compliance:

'S. | Natureof | Paragraph

No. | Requirement No. Description of the Non-Compliance ‘

As per section 176 (3) of the Companies Act, 2007, the board of a Public |
Company shall meet at least once in each guarter.

However, the Board meeting for the first quarter ended September 30, 2024, was
{1 Mandatory 7 not held within the guarter as scheduled, as the Company’s books of account were
not finalized on time due to delay in completing the annual Anancial statements for
the vear ended June 30, 2025, The delay primarily resulted from the health issues
of key staff members, and an éxtension had been duly approved by the SECP,

As per Regulation 27(2), the Audit Committee of a company 15 required o naeet at
least onece in every quarter of the financial vear. Such meetings are to be held prior
1o the approval of interim resulis by the Board and after completion of the exiernal
andiL.

Howewver, no meeting of the Audit Committee was held during the first quarter |
ended September 30, 2024, |

(2} Mandatory L

{19} .
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IE;. qu“l:;lrl;r:]:m rﬂ?ﬁ:‘."nh Description of the Non-Compliance
As per the Regulation no. 29 of the Regulations, the Board may constitute o
separate committee, designated as the Nomination Comumittee, of such number and
Explanation class of directors, as it may deem appropriate in the circumstances,
for non- As stated in paragraph 19 of the Stament of Compliance, the Company has ol
(3) cumplir.incc is 19 selup a separate Nomination Commitlee and is of the viulw that the Board currently
required includes individoals who can handling the responsibilities typically assigned 1o a
(Mon- Nomination Commiltee directly at the Board level. Given this effective
Mandatory) manigement, the establishment of a separate Nomination Committee is not
deemed necessary at thas time. The Board will continue to evaluate the need for
such o committes as circumstances evolve.
As per the Regulation no, 30 of the Regulations, the Board may constitule
separate committee, designated as the Risk Management Commitiee, of such
Explanation number and class of directors, a5 il muy deem appropriale in the circumstances.
for non- As stated m paragraph 19 of the Statement of Compliance, The Company has not
compliance is yet constituted a separate Risk Manapement Commitiee. However, The Board is
4 ; 19 ; S MG ; !
required currently handling the responsibilities typically assigned woa Risk Management
MNon- Committee directly at the Board level, Given this effective management, the
Mandatory) establishment of a separate Risk Management Commitiee 15 not deemed necessary
at ths wme, The Board will continee to evaluate the need for such a commmities as
circumstances evolve.
As per the Regulation no. 30 of the Regulations, the Board may constitute 4
separile commiltee, designated as the Risk Manmagement Committee, of such
Explanation nurmnber and class of directors, as it may deem appropriate in the circumstances.
for nom- As stated i paragraph 19 of the Statement of Compliance, The Company has not
(5) compliance is 19 yet constituted u separate Risk Management Committee. However, The Board is
required currently handling the responsibilitics typically assigned o a Risk Management
(Mon- Commitiee directly at the Board level. Given this effective management, the
Mandatory) establishment of a separate Risk Monagement Comouttee 15 not deemed necessary
at this time. The Board will continee to evaluate the need for such a committes as
circumstances evolve. -
As per the Regulation 10A, the Board is responsible for governance and oversight
of sustainability risks and opportunitics and, for this purpose, is required /
encouraged to take a number of measures including, in particular, implementation
of policies 1o promote diversity, equity and inclusion (DE&I): taking steps to
E . proactively understand and address the prmeipal as well as emerging sustainability
“xplanation ; i i 2 Ll L
faraiy risks and oppertunities. ensuring that the Cumpan?r s sustainability and DE&I
. ; ) related strategies, priovities and targets as well as performance against these tarpets
compliance is . g g 2 g a0
(&) required 19 are pcuclullu..l]i}f rcj..fu:urmi Iam;i monitored; :mcl n.'shfhhshmem of'l dcdlcamd_
(Non- susi:mlnal:ulny cnn11rnl1tlu_=,e having |Iai Ilensn one terrm!n: director, or assignment of
Mandatory) ﬂ}ld:th:lml] responsibilities o an existing board committee, .
The Company has nol estoblished a separate Sustainability Commiliee, as these
responsibilities are presently overseen by the Board, The Board provides oversight
of sustainability risks and DE&I initiatives, with progress reported through the
Directors” Report. and will continue to review the need for a dedicated commitiee
in light of future developments.
Ralew a4 i
Karachi. RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL Q

Date: November 05, 2025

UDIN: CR202510213F8bMO g4V

Chartered Accountants

53l
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
To the members of Nadeem Textile Mills Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Orpinion

We have audited the annexed Mnancial statements of Nadeem Textile Mills Limited (“the Company”). which comprise the statement
of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprebensive inconte, the statement of
changes in equity. the statement of cash fows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including o semmury of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (*the finaneial statements’), and we state that we have obtained afl the
informuation and explanations whicly to the best of cur knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given o us, the statement of financial position, the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity ond the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereol conform with the accounting und reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2007 (XX of 201 7). in the manner so reguired and, respectively, give o troe and fair
view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the loss, 1ol comprehensive lass, ehanges in cquity and s cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

Wi conducted our audit in accordance with the Intermnationnl Standards on Auditing (I15As) ss applicable in Pakiston, Owr
responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the dedivor 's Responsibidiies for the Awellt of the Financic! Statements
section of our reporl. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Inlernational Ethics Standands Board for
Aceountamts” Code of Ethies for Professional Accountants a5 adopted by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code, We believe that the audn evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide o basis for our epinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Coneern

We drmw attention to Note 1.2 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a loss after tux of Rs. [, 190,942
million during the vear ended June 30, 2025 (2024: loss of R, 961,780 million). As of that date, the Company’s accumulated loss
amounted w Bs, 603,905 million (2024: acoumulated profit of Rs. 373,453 million), and its curremt liabilities exeveded iis current
azsets by Rs, 1302487 million. Furthermaore, the Company temporarily closed operations of its second unit loeated ot Kotrl in April
2023 to avoid Turther operational losses,

These conditions, along with other factors disclosed in the financial statements, indieate the existence of a material uncertainty that
may cast sigmilicant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue ps o going concern. Our opmion i< ool modilied in respect of this
maiter.

Key Aundit Matters

key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judpment, were of most significance in our audit of the finomeial
statements of the current perisd. These matters were addressed in the context of our audil of the financial statements as 2 whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Except for the matter deseribed in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have determined that there are no ather key audil matters to communicate
in Our TepaTt,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Muanugement is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the infonmation ineluded m the annual report,
but docs not include the financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon,

Cur opinion on the fnancial statements docs not cover the other information and we de not express any form of assuranoe conclusion
thereon,

In connection with owr audit of the financial statements, owr responsibility is 1o read the other infarmation and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the finuncial statements or our knowledge obtained in the avdit or
otherwise appears o be materially missiated. 1T, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is 8 material
misstaterment of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Munagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the nancial stitements in sccoridnnee with the aceounting smd
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act. 2007 (XIX of 2017} and for such mternal
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cortrol as management determines 18 necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from moterial

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern,

disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concemn and vsing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either

intends 1o liguidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no realistio alternative but 1o do o,

Board of Dircctors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Aodit of the Finaneial Statements

Owr objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance obout whether the financial statements as o whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Beasonable assurance is a high

level of nssurance, but is not 8 guarantee thin an audil conducted in secordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan will slways detect

a mialerial misstatement when il exists, Misstalemends can arise from faud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the npgregate, they could rensonubly be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the finaneil

statements,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in aecordamee with 15Ax as applicable m Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

seepticisi throughout the audit. We also:

= [dentify and assess the risks of moterial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain sudit evidence that is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not deteeting a material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from emor,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional emissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Dbt an understanding of mternal control relevant (o the audit i order 1o design audit procedires thit are appropriste in the
circumsianees, bat not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

= Evalume the approprintencss of accounting policies used and the rensonableness of nccounting cstimates and related disclosures
made by management,

= Copclude on the appropristeness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability 1o continue as a going concern, 11 we conelude that o material uncenainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 10 modify our opinion,
O conclusions are based on the asudit evidence obtained ap to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company (e vease o conlinue as 4 going concem,

= Evalwme the pverall presentation. structure and content of the finaneisl statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial stateiments represent the underlyving transactions and events in o manner that achicves iy presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
sigrificant audit Andings, mcluding any significant deficiencies i internal control that we identily during our audit,

We also provide the Board of Divectors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical reguirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matiers that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our
independence. and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the finaneial stalements of the current period and are therefore the key audil matters. We deseribe these mallers in our auditar’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure abow the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
maller should pol be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected o
outweigh the public interest benetits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion;

{a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company a3 required by the Companies Act, 2017 (NIX of 2017);

(b} the statement of finaneial position. the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash Nows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformaty with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 20017) and are mn agreement with the books of account and returns;

(e} investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extendesd during the year were For the purpose of the Company’s
business; and

(d} no eakat was deductible al source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance. 1980 (XVIT of 1980},

The engagement partner on the awdit resulting in this independent suditor’s report is Mr. Muhammad Waseem.

Karachi: W

Date; Wovember (05, 2023 RAHAMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFI
UDIN: AR202510213Lsx7030rC Chartered Accountants
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025
1als 2024
ASSETS Mute Riupees
MNon-turrent @assety
Propermy, plant and cguipiment ] 4 406,993 416 3579775573
Long term advances and depaosits 5 33303456 33303456
Prelerred taxation - net fr 6 321,019 -
4. 446,617,891 JALE0Te 029
Current assems
Stores,-spares amd looss wals 7 154,904,662 245,746,781
Stock-in-trade S n02IRE. 639 1,555,022.575
radde debis 9 a0, 084, 37T 15004, Gtk 69 ]
Invesimenis 1 177.307.921 172 3074921
Loans, advances, depositaand prepavinents 11 162,409,743 145,233,087
(Hher receivihles 12 13,590,975 35 850,405
Tax refumds dee from povernment 13 17,114,367 74,030,149
Cosh and bank bolonces 14 55,000,879 182,340,957
2150831563 3.914,434,586
Total assets £.507,449,454 7.527.517.615
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized capival
33,000,000 ordinary (2024: 33,000,000 shares of R 100 each 330,000,000 J30, (6008, (00
Issued, subscnbed and paid wp cupatal 15 I12.667.350 212,867,350
Revenue rasere
neeumulated losses (B3, 904.577) 573452787
Capital reverves
Revalustion surplis on property, plant wnd equipment - net of defermed tay I 2,222 994,266 1,184, T16,919
Contribution from associated undertaking 17 340.000_ 000 3400, Ce0, 00
Contritution fom dircctors |8 192, 0000, DNy -
Shiare premium INE 0H3.5360 3R 683530
30143679002 1,513 400455
2,752, 442,275 2 a0y 530 562
Non-current lHabilities
Long term financing 1% 316,503,717 445 455 s
StulT retiroment henefits - gratuity a0 TH AR5 141,602,143
Dreferred taxatiom - net fi - G4 92T T
IO HRA F6H0 HE4 ME3, 336
Current liabilities
Loan from refated partics i 4,650,040 34,450,000
Loans Trom direcions a2 134, 3000, (ki 139, 3400k, 05k
Trude and other pryahles 23 S A35,052 1368, 712,544
Acerued mark-up 24 94,054,624 130,464,547
Short term bormowinges - secured b1 2,122.508,650 3.352.411,500
Llselaimied dividemnd 1,503,383 1,50, 403
Taxamon - net 13 - #3485
LCurrent portion of long tenm financing 14 143,776,910 137,764,703
1453 318,619 4ATR015.68T
Contingency and commitments 2B - =
Total equity aund labilities 6,597,449,454 1521517615
The pnnexed notes from | o 45 foom an inteernl part of these linancial stitements.

e M Yoz8
ahid Mazh#r Omer Bin Zahid Omer Bin Zahid
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

Karachi: November 05, 2025
™ [79] =
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025

2024

Rupees

4,893,178,341
(5.420.361,241)

1 1.391,093.507
(11.325.471.764)

(527,182,900)

65,621,743

MNote
Sales - net 27
Cost of sales 28
Gross (loss) / profit
Administrative expenses 29
Distribution costs 3
Operating loss
Other income 31
Other expenses 32
Finance cosls 33
Loss before levies and taxation
Levies 34
Loss before taxation
Taxation 35
Loss after taxation
Loss per share - basic and diluted 36

(168,943,720) (186,026,693)
(85.606,147) {175,988,320)
(254.549.867) {362,015.013%)
(781,732,767) (296,393.270)
44.696.530 95,376,161
(33,435,765) (17,299,649)
(506,878,895) (676,498,925)
(495.618.130) (59%,422.413)
(1.277.350,897) (K94,815,683)
(61,164,729) (146,199,863)
(1.338,515,626) (1.041,015.546)
147,573,431 79,234 852
(1,190,942,195) (961,780,694)
(56.00) (45.22

The annexed notes from | to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

e

Chief Executive

Karachi: November 05, 2025

02U

Omer Bin Zahid
Director

VoK,

Omer Bin Zahid
Chief Financial Officer

53k
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

025 2024
Rupees

Loss after taxation (1, 190.942,195) (G ], THO694)
Other comprehensive income [ {loss)
Trems that will not be subsequently veclassified

fo profin or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of land, factory building,

non-factory building 1.127,794,922 -
Dieferred tax Expense on above (76.210,527) =

1.051,584.395 -

Gain / (Loss) on remeasurement of the defined benefit abligation 393,638 (15,365.413)
Deferred tax (Expense) / income on above (114,155) 2,906,093

279 483 (12,459 315)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (139.078,317) (974, 240,009}

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these Anancial stalements.

Zﬁ’i ai”l?Z/ryﬂm+ ﬂigﬁﬁﬁ ﬂﬂgﬂiﬂ

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
Karachi: November 05, 2025
. {25] .
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 224
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: ot Hupues
L= hefore levies 2nd taxation (L2 TT L0 89Th {BUE KES AR}
Atfiexpmisits for- fimn coh aond ober (e
- Dhepreciation expeiss 416 L2A6TEIOD I51.002.342
= Provision for stalf gratusty 2037 Bl 202074 S6 605 264
- (ReversalV provision for pas tard T difference i3 {(WLZHT.ALI) RS R
- Prowvisivn for OHT the Gnd (Captive Power Plants§ Levy 23 TAMLIT -
= Provdsion for nait-duaieping duly ] L ESR 025 e
- Prowvision for Excise and taxstion churges 23 513450 -
« Proafit on spving accounis 31 (11,734, 856) (ZOAZ0,065)
« Profit un Teem Deposite Recopts { TDRE:) il (27,200, 74T {AURUZ &)
- Lo {gnin ) on-sile of property, pland pnad eguipment 31 Tibd 8,750 [ W HECH
= Bad dehis revovered 1 (5,729,491 123,535, 145)
- Loss g sule ul spure purls 32 1. 740831 -
- Transfer fonm capitul work in progress to repaic and mnintenunge expense 4.2 627,380 -
Frivcision for Wisrkers" 'Wellare Fand 15 = e TR
- Prowvision poaiingt slow mawing Ko ifems i - f30_ 500
- Reversal of proviskm of WWT 237 {3,832,450) -
= Provvision for expected credet losses az 4,700, 0040 42495980
- Mirkup costs 33 474247665 09,418 F62
053,402,953 Hh6, 714472
Operatng losa betore working capital chanped (623,947,904} {28 0B1.2LE)
facrrasel { deoremie (v Crerent assery
= Stowes: spares nd |oose tools 22145640 {204 ER1TOR)
- Stoick an rmede St 736,930 A6 055014
- Trade debus R TR E Ira.2as011
Loans and advances {17070 6560 (hY_ 142 SR
- Other receivibles - {23712
- Bales tax rehimdable - L1734 ALY
1,530,500, 645 BASN2T 01
Inercate S (lerrease] (n curecnt Hahilifles
« Trde anal other payahles (3R 42, 555) AR, A2, T4
- Bales 1ax pavable K. T31402 -
Cash generated from operations At D4 1.55H TEHEE0. 145
Liomy, term deposils plscesd - (272210}
Livcoene s pad 131 (K666T 581 ) (B 905 H30)
Crratuity prid 201 {127,220.330) (43102477
Markup paid (S10062,08H) (0% RAT ESD)
Woikers' Profit Participation Fund pawd 234 - |1521 425)
Workers' Welfure Fund paid - {4557
el cosh wved in upt-rslin-g aclivilies (TIT0] 3047 (14574, T4y
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plont und eguipmeént 13, 14K, 9510 | {1 D4 585, 9560)
Shert berm inviestatients gbtabsed - pet {3 AHHb M {13 440 T
Prasfit received o saving accounts and TDRs S, 400,073 SRR TIE
Proceeds from disposal of ppare pars M 9TLTIH -
PMeascieds Trom disposal of property,. plamt and equipment 61771572 10490
Mot ensh genorated Trom ( (osed Do) lnvesting aetivites 141,005 433 LI4a D32 50T}
CASH FLOYWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lo term linahce sepaid (125937530 {95538 5401)
Lesan esbtainesd from direcior LR FS TR ] SR 00000
Lo ropeid 16 divector - 4 LRS00 0y
Lasan regrand 1o pelared parties UMb 15450 00y
Loan abtaimed from o rebated party 200,50, MY -
LShort term borrowangs excluding running Auance {270, 430,866 215,530 Ak
Bividend poid (3028) -
et eush genersted from [ {used in) linnncing activities (VR TR 4305 2,335,138
et decrease’ imcrease in cash and cash eguivalents (173,797 054) BUR AR
Casly and eush equivalentz gl beginming of the vear (334, 0 T i3 {334 TRA_H45)
Cush and cash equivalents at end of the year 3T S S A N

The unnesisd nides from | s 23 form o integrn] pan of these financisl stifements,

ﬁfiﬁz‘# ﬂigmﬂﬁﬂ ﬂﬂfrgm'j{;fhid

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
Karachi: November 05, 2025
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
Revenue resirye Capital reseryes
lssaiead, Revalantlon surplus Contritmithin
snbwrribed ll'rhl'pprn‘wiuud Shure e prn[url'_\-, |1I||.|1.l Cnmirilnetion Froom Teatnl
aml pald up prufits | lasses) preniduny aitl equlpment - met From direeeors mssnciated
capplital ul deferred tus umeertalking
Rupees
Balanie as uf Jupe 3, I023 2LE6T.3HE L33 TSLHTT TREGHLE5G | 198 656838 EEEREUERH LN JOTH TR0,
Trapddor to unappropiiated profil on sccount of
Incremnundil deprécmtion - nel o deferted fax 13y IR
Fopyl cramprpleenringe fasy fior gl
vy ewden Sivae T0, N2
=« Lt adber {axation
1 ] TSR (9] THOLBG4
= Ditherw z lir
remmpmchensrne lisss 12 ASH 315 2459315
- | 974 2HE AN - (S TL 20,
Balanee us ul Juse 1, 2024 LG0T NS ST AR2 8T IRHGHE S50 1184710010 - REIIRILTRILTE L4090 520,507
Tranafor w amappropiated profitan sccauni of
nerernental deprecestion = net of deferred s - 13,305 04K ) (L3305.04H) - ) p
Comiribwhion from direslars - - = - VL AMND, 0 TOE, 0, k0
Totiel comppraneive s fine the
s ervedied S 500, 2034
- Lo afber tuxaion - - - -
(1,190,942, 195) 11.190,942, 195)
= O comprehensise ineose - - - -
ITIARD 0151 554,395 1,051,803 8T8
- (L1962, 712} - IAS1SR42U5 = - (RBTRILT)
Balonce as of Jume M. 2025 ALAETASI |6 904 BT T ARY.6HY 538 2222 9%6. 16 192, i, iy A1 AHH AN ISR LIS
Tha aneeried notes P 1 48 formoan integal gt of s fomumess) stilemenls,
M{ -~ ﬂ@{j ﬂl(?/{-j
ahid Mazh#r Omer Bin Zahid Omer Bin Zahid
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
Karachi: November 05, 2025
{27} u
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

INTRODUCTION

Lezal status of the Company

Madeem Textile Mills Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in Pakistan on July 13, 1984 as a public limited
company under the Companics Ordinance, 1984 (repealed with the enactment of the Companies Act, 2007 on
May 3, 2017y ond its shores ore listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the
Company is the manufacuring and sale of yam,

The geographical location of Company's offices are as follows:
The registered office i located at 801-404, Lakson Square Building Mo, 3, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi,

Manufacturing facilities are situated at,
-Unit 1: A-265, 5.LT.E., Nooriabad, District Dadu, Sindh
-Unit 2; E-11, S.LT.E.. Kotri, District Dadu, Sindh,

Going concern assumption

Dy the past wwo: vears, the Company, along with the overall spiming sector, faced significant challenges
arising from unfavormble government policies, low domestic cofton production, bigh raw material prices,
substantial increases in energy tariffs, and elevated interest rates. These factors adversely affected the Company’s
performance and resulted in operating losses.

As g consequence. dunng the year the Company incurred o loss after tax amounting to Bs 1190942 mullion
(2024 loss of Rs. 961,780 million), Us accomulated lass as of year end amounted to Rs, 604384 million (2024
aceumulated profit of Rs. 573,453 millionjand its current habilities exceeded its current assers by Rs 13022949
million. These condition along with temporarily elosore of its second unit located st Kotri in April 2025 to avoid
further increase in loss, indicate the existence of material uncertamty that the may cast significant doult on the
company's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, the company may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its linbilines in normal course of business,

The losses for the last two vears were common for the entire spinning sector caused due to low cotton production
and high cotton prices, abrupl sharp inerease in gas tariffs (from Rso 1100 per MMBTLU 0 Rs, 3,500 per
MMBTLY, higher bank mark up and dependence largely on costly imported raw materials. The prodoction costs
exceeded the selling prices that resulted in gross loss for the spinming sector and our Company as well owing 1o
in competitive costs besides the cost increase due o exclusion of supplies of locally manufactursd cotion varn to
indireet exporters from Expor Facilitation Scheme (EFS).

The company has prepared these Gnancial statements using gomng concern assumption for the mitigating factors
stated below:

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the manzgement efforts have yielded good results and it has received zood
number of orders for exports as weel orders from local indirect exporiers as a result of stability in cotton  prices
The Company expects improved results as o result of reduction in policy rate by SBP, Morcover, cost cutting
measures and operational efficiency is expected 10 increase tumover o 2024 level, ensure gross profit and profii
after 1ax in the following year. The company had made BMR of about 650 million in 2023 and 2024 which
coupled with the installation of a 3 MW solar power system would Jower énergy costs and improve operational
efficiency. The modification of EFS would help increase company's sales as o result of level playing field that
had previously been discriminatory and resulted in loss of local sales,

The increase in current linbilities over current assets is being addressed by the management through the recovery
of trade debts, improved sales, and injections of funds whenever required, The excess had arisen due 1o the
payment of markup on short-term loans and long-term financing of Rs. 500 million, settlement of retirement
benelits of Kotri employecs, and invenlory management

Aol
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¢} During the last two years, the sponsors alse extended finoncial support amounting to Bs. 331 million te address
temporary cash flow shorfalls, enabling the Company to meer its obligations as they became due. Furthermare,
there is no indication of any intention to withdraw or reduce this support; rather, the sponsors have reaffarmed
therr continued commitment. In addition, all short term credit facilities by the finencial institulions have been
renewed, ensuring adequate avoifability of working copital for ongoing operations.

Bused on the sbove fietors and their positive effects on the Company’s projections, wogether with the continuous
availability of financing facilities from the Gnancial matitutions and the sponsors, management believes that the
Company will e able to meet its obligations and contmue to operate ag & gong concern amidst expoctation of
canducive government policies for the textile sector,

N BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have heen prepared in accordance with the approved accounting snd fimancial
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Such standards comprise:

- Imternaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standurds) issued by the Intermational Aceounting
Standards  Board (IASB) os are potified under the Companies Act, 2017, and
- Provisions of, and direetives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017,

Where the provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2007 differ from the ITFRS Standards,
the former have been followed.

22 Basis of measurement
Items in these financial stalements have been measured at their historical cost except for leasehold land, felory
building and office premises which are carried at revalued amounts less secumulated depreciation thevein.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
lems mcluded in these Gnoencial statements wre measured using the currency of the primiry  economic
cnviromment i which the Company operates. These financiol statements are presented in Pak Ropess which 15 the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

24 Use of estimates and judg ments
The prepuaration of finsseial statements o conformity with secounting aml reporting standards  requices
management to make judgements, estimates and assumplions thae affeer the application of sccounting policies and
reparied amounis of assets, labilities, income and expenses. Actual results mny differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are roviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to aceounting estimates are
eecoghizeed in the period in which the estirnate is revised 0 the revision afTects only thal pertod, or in the period of
the revision and future pericads i the revision affects both corrent and future periods, Areas where varioos
assumptions und cstimates are significunt to the Company's fimanceal statements or where judgments were
exereised inapplication of accounting policy are as follows:

Nerree

Revaluation of certain items of property, plant and equipment 3!

- Useful life and residuad values of property, plant and equipmient 3.1
- Provision for stdT retimernent benefits 3.8
- Provision for tixation it

1.3 New Accounting pronsuncements
250 Standards, interpretarions and arendments to pubiished approved accounting srandards thar arve ot yer

The fllowing standards and amendments have been ssued but are nol effective for the fmancial yvear begnning
July 1, 2024 and have not been early sdopred by the Company:

TAS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Forclgn Exchange Rates (Amendments: Lack of Exchangeability,
effective January 1. 2025):

Amendments to [AS 21 The Effeets of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates address circumstances where o
eurrency is not exchangeable, often due (o government resirictions, In such cases. entities are reguired 1o estimate
the spot exchanpe rote that would apply in an orderly transaction at the meassurement date. The amendments
permit exibility by allowing the use of observable exchange rates withour adjustment or other estimation
methods, provided these meet the overll estimation oljective, When essessing this, entities should comsider
factors such as the existence of multiple cxchimge rates, their intended use, nature, and frequency of updates, The
amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements, including details of the non-exchangeability, its
financial impact. the spot rate applied. the estimation approach used. and related risks.
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Amendmenty to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 — Classification and Measurement of Financial Instraments {effective
January 1, 2024):

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instroments: Disclosures and 1FRS 9 Financial Instroments — Classification and
Mensurement provide clarifications and updates in several areas. They refine the requirements around the timing
of recognition and derecognition of certzin [Inancial assets and labilities, introducing a new exception [or
finaneial liabilities settled via electvonic cash transfor systems. The wsendments also clarity and expand the
gudanee on assessing whether & financial asser meets the “solely payments of principal and anterest™ (SPP1)
criterion, In addition, new disclosure requirements are miroduccd for imstroments with contractusl terms that can
alier gash flows, such as those linked to environmental, social, and governance (ESG) targets, Further updates are
also made to the disclosure reguirements for equity instuments. designsted al fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYOCT),

IFRS 17 — losurance Contracts (effeetive Janoary 1, 2026 in Pakistan, as divected by SECP vide SRO
ITLS(1H2023):

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentufion and
dizclosure of nsurance contracts within the seope of the Standard. The objective of TFRS 17 15 to ensure that an
entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts, This information gives a basis for
users of financial statements o assess the effect thal insurance conteacts have on the entity’s financial position,
linancial performonee and cash lows. SECT vide is 5SRO ITIS(IV2023 dated November 21, 2023 has directed
that [TFRS 17 shall be follewed for the period conmmencimg Jonuary [, 2026 by compunies engiged in insurance
takaful snd re-insurance ¢ re-takaful business,

Annual Improvements — Yolume Eleven (effective January 1, 2026):

- Hedge Accounting by a First-time Adopter { Amendments 1o IFRS 1) - The amendments are imtended 1o
address potential confusion arising from an meansisieney between the wording in IFRS 1 aml the
reguirements for hedpe sccounting in IFRS 9.

- Giadn or Loss oo Derccognition {Amendments to IFRS 7) « To update the language on unobservable inputs
amd 1o include a oross reference to paragraphs 72 and 73 of IFRS 13 Far Value Measurement,

= Introduection (Amendments o Guidance on implementing IFRS 7 - To clarify that the guidance does mot
nevessanly illustrote all the requirements n the reforenced paragraphs of [FRS 7. nor docs it create
adiditional requirements,

= Disclosure of Deferred Difference between Fabr Value and Transaction Price (Amendments o Guidanee on
implementing IFRS 7) - Parsgraph [G14 of the Guidanee on implementing IFRS 7 has been aitendoed
mminly 1o make the wording consistent with the reguirements in paragiaph 28 of IFRS 7 and with the
concepts and terminology used in IFRS 9 and IFRS 13

= Credit Risk Disclosures { Amendments to Guidance on implementing IFRES 71 - Paragraph G208 of the
Guidance on implementing IFRS 7 has been amended to simplify the explanation of which aspects of the
IFRS requirements are not illustrated in the example.

- Transaction Price {Amendiments to IFRS 9) - Parsgroph 5.1.3 of IFRS 9 lus been amended to reploce the
reference o mansaction price as defined by IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' with 'the
amount determined by applying IFRS 15, The use of the term "transaction pres’ in relation to IFRS 15 was
potentially confusing and so it has been removed. The term was also deleted from Appendix A of IFRS 9.

= Determination of a 'De Facto Agent' { Amendmenis to IFRS 10 - The amendment is imtended o remove the
incansistency with the requirement in paragraph BT3 for an entity to use judgement to determine whether
olher parties are acting as de facto agents.
- Cost Method (Amendments o 1AS 7) - Parngraph 37 of TAS 7 has been amended 1o replace the lerm 'cost
methad’ with 'at cost', following the prior deletion of the definition of 'cost method”,
The sbove standords, amendments: o approved pecounting standurds ond inderpretations have not been early
adopted by the Company and are pot [ikely to have any material mpact on the Company's financial statements.
Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, LASE has also issued the following standards
and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exermpt by the SECP as of Juna 30, 2025:
IFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
The mew standard on presentetion and disclosure in Gnancial statements, IFRS 18, focuses on updates o the
statement of profit or loss. It introduces key concepts such as the strecture of the statement of prafit or loss,
requirad disclosures for certain profit or loss performance measures reported outside the linancial statements
{mnagement-defined  performance measures), and enhanced principles on aggrepation and  dissggregation
apphicable t the primary fnancal statements amd notes.
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Mufer fopeed on Companies " Financial Statemonts:

IFRS 18 will pequire the Company to restructure their statement of profit or loss into operating, investing, amd
financing categories, which may nlter familiar subtotals such as operating profit. This standard focuses on
disaggregation will expand diselosures, requiring more detailed breakdowns ol income, expenses, and significant
transactions, mther than broad groupings. Adoption will also demand apdates w reporting systems and processes,
increasing complisnce effor!, but ultimately enhancing transparency, comparability, and investor confidence,

IFRS 19 — Subsidiarics without Public Aceountability: Disclosures

IFES 19 — Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Diselosures introduces reduced disclosure requirements
for cligihle subsidiaries that apply IFRS Accounting Smandsrds. [t applics w subsidisres withom public
accountability whose parenl prepares publicly available consolidated [FRS financial siatements. Recognition and
measurement remain fully aligned with TFRS, while disclosures are sigmificantly simplified. The standord gims 1o
ease the reporting burden withow compromising the usefulness of information, and sdoption is voluntary,

The following new or amended standoards and interpretations became effective during the year, However, the same
are not considered to be relevant to the Company's financial statements:
Supplier Finanee Arrangements { Amendments 1o 1AS 7 and IFRS T)

- Lease Laability in o Sale and Leaseback {Amendments 1o IFRS 16}

- Classification of Liabilites as Current or Non-Curment (Amendments to 1AS 1)

- Mon-current Liabilities with Covenants {Amendments to FAS 1)
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material sceounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial stastements are set out below, The
accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented,
Froperty, plant and egquipment
These re stated at cost less acoumuleted depreciation and mparment loss, f any, exeept lease hold lamd, facory
building and office premizes which are stated ot revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment
Inss, if any.
Subsequent costs are included in the carmying amount as appropriate. only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, The ciurying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the statement of prafl or loss during the year in which they are incurrec.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon dispesal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from it use or disposal. Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the nsset (calculated as the
difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) isincluded in the stsement of
profit or loss in the year in which the asset is derecognized.

Deprecintion is charged to the statement of profil or loss applying writlen down value method whereby the cost or
revalued amount of an asset 18 written of7 over s useful life at the rafes specified monote 3.1 the Anammal
stotements, Depreciztion on additions 15 choargped from the duy i which asser 15 wvlable for vseand on dispesals
up to the day immediately preceding that of disposal.

The assets' residual vidues, useful lves are reviewed. and adjusted if appropriate, ot cach finaneial year end. The
Company’s estimate of residual value of property and equipment at year end did not require any adjustisent as its
impact is considered insignificant,

Any revaluation increase ansing on the revaluation of assels g recogmsed moother comprehensive meome and
presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluntion surplus on property, plant and équipment”, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously chiarged. Any decrease
in carrying amount grsing on the revaluation of freehold land, fctory building and office premises is charged 1o
profit or loss o the extent that it exceeds the balunce, iWany, held in the revaluation surplus on property, plant amd
couipment relating to a previous reviduation of that ssset, The revaluation reserve 15 not ovailable for distnibution
to the Company's shareholders. The surplus on revaluation to the extent of ineremental depreciation charged is
mansferred to unappropriated profit

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, 1t any, All expendimres connecred
to the specific assers incuned during installstion and construction period ave camied under capital work-in-
progress, These are trandlermed (o specificd agacts as and when assels are available for pse.
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Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued al cost less the provision for slow moving or obsclete items, if any, except for the items in
transit which are stated at cost (comprising invoiee value and other divectly attributable costs thereon). The ¢ost
of the fens consunted and thise held in stock ot the reporting date is deterinined using average cost method,

Provisions are made in the Mnancial statements [or obsolete and low moving items based on the manngement's
best estimate regarding their future usability,

Stock in trade

Baves of valuanion

All items of stock-in<trade are valued at the lower of cost and their net realizable valie o5 of the reporling date.
Dreterminition of vast

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchuse, costs of conversion nnd other costs incurred in bringing
the invenbories 1w their present location and condition,

The costs of purchase ol invemories comprise the purchage price, import duties and other txes (other thun thoss
stbsequently recoverable by the Company from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other costs
directly attributable o the acquisition of finished goods, materials and services, Trade discounts, rebates and
other similar Hems-are deducted in determinimg the cosis of purchase,

The costs of conversion of inventories inelude costs directly related o the units of production, such as direet
labouir, They wdso include o systethntic allocation of fixed and vanable production overhelds that ore meurmed in
converling materials into [nished goods. The allocation of fixed production overheads o the costs of conversion
15 based on the normal capacity of the production fcilities (which is the production expected to be achieved on
average over @ number of perods or scasons under nommal ciroumstanecs, taking into account the loss of capocity
resulting from planned maintenance). However, in periods of abnormally high prodoction, the amount of fixed
pvericad allocated to each unit of production 12 decréased so that invertones are not messured above cost,
Yariable production overhends are allocated 10 cach unit of production on the basis of the sctual wse of the
production facilities.

The cost of the items consumed or sold and those held in stock at the reporting date is determined using the

-average cost formula.

Deetermitmativn of net realizable valug

Met reabisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion ond the estimated costs pecessary to make the sile, The cost of imventories may not be recoverable if
those inventories are damaged. if they hove become wholly or partially obsolete, or il their selling prices have
declimed. The cost of inventories may also not be recoverable iF the estimated costs of completion or the
estimated costs o be incurred 1o make the sale have increased.

The Company estimates the net realisable value of inventories based on the most reliable evidence available, at
the reporting date, of the amount the inventories are expected o realise, These estimates take into consideration
fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the end of the reporting period to the extent
thiat such cvents confirm comditions existing at the ol of the reporting period.

Raw mterials and other supplies held for use in the production of investories ure not weinten down below cost if
the finished product in which they will be incorpomted are expected o be sold ot or above cost, However, when
a decline in the price of materials indicates that the cost of the fnished product exeeeds net realisable value, the
mialenals ane written down o net realisable value. In Such circumstances, the replacement cost of the muitenals
used ns the measure of their nel realisable value.

Trade debis

These are carmed at their transaction price less any allowanee for Bifetime expected credit losses, A necervable 15
recognized when the goods ore delivered 1o dealers-as this 15 the point in tdme that the consideration is
unconditional becimise only the passage of time i3 required before the payment is due,

Cash and cosh equivalents
Cash and ¢ash eguivalents are carmied al cost, For the purpose of the statement of cash lows, cash and cash

cquivalents comprise cash (n hand. bank balances and shorr term borrowings from banks which are repayable on
demuind wed form an integral part of the Company’s cash nunsgement.

IEG]!
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36 Finanecial assets

6.1 Classification and initial measurement
The Company recognizes a financial asset when and only when it becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of
the instrumeni evidencing investment, The Company classifies its financial assets into either of following three
CaleRnnes,
(a) financial assets measured at amortized cost;
(b} fairvalue through other comprehensive income (FVOCT),
(e)  fair value through profit or less (FVTPL); and

ferd  Financial azsets measured ar amortized cost,
A financial asset 18 measured at smortized cost il it is held within business mode]l whoze objective is 1o hold
assets to collect contractual cash fAows, and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash fows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on pringipal amount oulstanding,

Such finanecial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or 1ssue thereol,

fhl  Fair value throngh other comprehensive income (FVOCT;
A financial asset is elassified as at fair value through other comprehensive income when it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial

assets and its contracmual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Such financial assers are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly atiributable o
the acguisition or issue thercof.

fod Feir value throngh profic or losy (FVTEL) and
A financial asset shall be messored an fair value through profin or loss unless i s measured a1 amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as aforesaid. Howewver, for an investiment in eguity

mstrument which is not held for trading, the Company may make an irevoeahle election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value.
3.6.2 Subsequent measurement
fa)  Financial wssety measured ab amoritzed cost

Thiese assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (determined vsing the effective interest method)
less accumulated impairment |osses.

Interest | markup income, loreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses arising from such
financial assets are recogmized in profit or loss,

th)  Fimancial assets ar FFOCT
These are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated mmpainment losses.

A gain or loss on # financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in accordance
is recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impainment gains or losses and foreign exchange
gaing and losses, undl the financial asset b5 derccognised or reclassificd. When the financial asset s
derecognised the cumuolative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity o profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. Interest 15 calculated using the
effective interest method and 15 recognised in profit or loss,
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3.6.4

3.7

Fimancial axses af FETPL
These assets are subsequently measured ot fair value.

Net pains or lesses arising from remeasurement of such financial assets as well s any inferest income
aceruing thereon are recognized in the statement of profit or loss, However, for an investment in equity
instrument which is not held for trading and for which the Company has made an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subseguent changes in the fair value of the investment, such gams or
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income, Further, when such investment is disposed off, the
cumulative gain or lass previously recognised in other comprehensive income is not reclassified from equity
to profit or loss,

Impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit Tosses in respect of financial assets measured at
amaortised cosL

For trade recetvables, the Company applies the [FRS 9 'Simplified Approach’ to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance.

For other financial assets, the Company applies the IFRS @ "General Approach' to measuring expecied credit
losses whereby the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instroment at an amount egual to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the eredit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since mitial
recognition. However, if, at the reporting date, the credit nsk on a financial instrument has not mereased
significantly since inilial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

The Compuny measures expected credit losses on financial assets in o way that refllects an unhbiased and
probability-weighted amount, time value of money and reasonable and supportable inlormation at the repording
date aboul the past events, currenl conditions and Fforecast of future economic conditions. The Company
recognises in profit or loss, as an impainment loss, the amount of expected credit Tosses (or reversal) that is
required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.

Loss allowances for financial assels measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrving amount of
the assets,

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

The Company directly redoces the gross carrying amount of a finangial asset when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event,

Financial liabilities

Finaneial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or "at fair value through profit or loss’ (FVTPLY),
A Anancial liability is classified as ot FVTPL AT it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on mitial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured ot fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Other financial liabilities are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, Interest
gxpense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profil or loss. Any gain or loss
on de-recognition 1$ also recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Financial liahilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have expired
ar when the cash flows of the financial liability have been substantially modified.
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Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial nsscis and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offsct and intends to
settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle liability simultancously,

Staff retivement benefits

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity regularly pays contributions into a
separate fund but will continue to have legal or construetive obligation w pay further contributions i the fund
does not hold sufficient assets 1o pay all employee benefits relating 1o employee service in the current and prior
periods, As a consequence. actuarial risk (that benefits will be less than cxpected) and investment risk (that assets
will be insufficient to meet expected benefits) fall, in substance, on the entity. The Company operates an
unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees which is classified as a defined benefit plan.

The Company’s obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is caleulated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that emplovees have carned in the current and prior periods and discounting thal amoeunt, The caleulation
of defined benelit obligation is performed annually by a qualificd actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method,

Remeasurements of the delined benefit lability (L. the actuarial gains or losses) are recognised imimediately in
ather comprehensive income. The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefil liability for the
period by applying the discount rate to the defined benefit liability ot the heginning of the anmual reporting
period, taking mto account any changes in the defmed benefit hability during the period as a result of
contributions and benelit payments. Interest expense and other expenses related o the defined benefit plan are
recopnised in profit or loss,

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Pravisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation ns a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bensfits
will be required to scitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
Provisions are not recoanised tor future operating losses,

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determing the present value s a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the rsks specific o the
liability, The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense,

Croniingent Ualilities

A contingent lability 1s disclosed when the Company hos a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
existonce will be confirmed only by the seeurrence or non-oceurrence, of one or more uneertain future svents not
whally within the control of the Company: or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
ariscs from past events. but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,

Levies and Taxation
Levies
A levy 15 an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits imposed by the govemment that does not meet

the definition of income tax provided in the Intermational Accounting Standard (1AS) 12 "Income Taxes' because it
15 noi based on taxable profi,
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In these nancial statements, levy includes minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 200 ]
over the normal tax liability computed there under, Workers' Welfare Fund expense and Workers' Profit
Participation Fund expense.

Crarrent fix

The portion of the income tax charge that is based on the 'taxable income’ for a reporting period (as determined in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the rules made thereunder) 15 classified
as a 'current tax', Any excess charge over the said amount is now classified as a'levy’ in the statement of profit or
loss.

Deferred iax

Delerred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the unconsolidated linancial statements. Deferred
mcome tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using fax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability 1= settled,

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that the sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilized. Deforred tax assets arc reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to
the extent that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Judgement and estimates

Significant judgement is required in determining the income tax expenses and corresponding provision for tax.
There may be transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain as these matters
are being contested at various legal forums. The Company recognizes labilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets and
lHabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

Further, the carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reparting date and is adjusted to reflect the
current assessment of future taxable profits. If required, carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits to allow the benefit of part or all of that
recognised deferred tax asset to be utilised, Any such reduction shall be reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax asscts and tax
liabilities are offset where the entily has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to seltle on u net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,
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Revenue recognition
Revenue from focal sales

Revenue from sale of goods (yarm) s recegnized when the customer aobtaing control of the goods, being when the
googds are delivered w the customer, the customer has full discretion over the selling price of the goods and there
is nie unfulfitled obligation that could affect the customer's seceptance of the goods, Delivery oceurs when the
goods have been dispatched from the company premise, the risk of loss has been transterred 1o the customer, and
cither the customer has accepted the goods in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
elapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services to the customer and pavment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does
not adjust any of the transaction prices for the tme value of money.

Revenue from export sales

Revenue from sale of goods o foreign customers is recognized when those customers oblain control of the
exported goods which is when the goods are loaded onto the shipping vessel and, a8 on acknowledgement thereof,
a hill of lading is i=sued by the shipping company.

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services o the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does
not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Other income

Retrn on bank deposies is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount ontstanding snd at the
rafe applicable.

Borrowing costs

Bormowing costs directly atributable to the acquisition, construction of production of gualifying assets, which are
asscts that necessarily take a substantial period of time 1o get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale, All other
bomowing cests are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Forcign curreney transactions and transiation

Transactions in foreign cwrrencies dre converted into Rupees ot the rate of exchange ruling on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are transtated into Rupees at the rate of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences anising on transaction are charged to profit or loss in
that period.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution 1o the Company's sharcholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the

dividends are approved.

2025 2024
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT Mole ——————— Rupees

4.384.073.416 3.556,228.154
W2 22,920,000 23.547.389
4.406,993,416 1,579,775,573

Opcrating fixed assets
Capttal work in progress
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4.1.2

4.0.3

414

4.1.5

Leasehold land of the Company are located nt A-265 31LT.E, Noortabad, Sindh and E-11, 5.1.T.E., Koiri Sindh
with an area of 67,760 and 38,720 syuare vards respectively

The Compony measure 15 land, buibdings and ofllice premises using revaluation model, The lalest revaluation of
lind, building, and office premises was carried out by an independent valuer KGT (Pt} Limited as on June 30,
25 om the basis of present market values for similar sized lind in the vicimity and replacement values of similar
tvpe ol buildings sdjusted (or depreciation factor for the existing assers in e,

Forced sales value of leasehold land, buildings and office premises based on the valuation conducied in June
2025 by mdependent valuer wore as follows:

Fair valoe Forced sale
value
Rupees
Frechold land 160,000,000 128,000,000
Letisehold Tand liﬁ?ﬂ.ﬂﬂﬂ.ﬂ[ll] 1&36.0”.@
Fogtory building 393,911,455 315,129,164
Office premises 409,562,180 327,649,744

[lad the leaschold fand, factory building and office premises been carried under the cost mode] of accounting,
their carrying amount at the reponing date would have been as follows:

2025 2024
Hupees
Freehold land 2942589 2942 589
Leaschold band 43,441,451 43,441,451
Factory building 102,822 487 105,108 481
Dftice premises 94,204,111 99,162,222
243,410,638 230,654,743

The particulars of assets disposed of during the vear with a written down value execeding Rs, 500,000 are s
fiol lows:

Partivulirs o Neeimilated | Wiilden L.Iu'n! Siley {iam) | beas iy T HI:_:I:T Meaile of
il {he d5uz deprechation | value (WDV) | proceeds npanl = dispal
Rupees
[t Genenaioe Mwin Cg )7 W RER32T | 36TIZEI EXNIENTE T el JAZLILY |Dparionn Tradig Froo | Mordpion | Mistision
U Genesaboe 3516 MMLIT| 8302 L TELY e RATH AW Moercum Spars And Cn Noraim | Neostinio
i 33 14B Gat RN e ] EEALRG | 4o | AR [Gencon Spires Aad (o Norelatie | Nepstistion
2 5S¢t Bando Diring ITHERE]  1LMEA TS| 1 1TE1 535 |Hasan And o Woretatm | Mepiiion
1 5S¢t Savin Onoe X2 ILTAWn ] F109mA22 [ty e (L] Y3278 filasmn And Co Norelana | Nepsiition
| et S Opne X2 [ L ] LOETIIE | [3URD 167,123 |Masan Ans Ua Mo elation | Nepsaiion
Cins (eeneretor Winkesha WH1 KW TS 1 £2R252 RT3 AT aeroom Spares Andd o W relatim | Neoziiin
Fias Cremertnny W subeshs T KWW rRLm 5140 LU ISHG [AMA64g0esrna Spares. and Co Morditim | Negoiation
ol Matring MES-D Mede] 20003 LTI AT LIEss| I -'H.thT“.IFrm Farm) Teatiles Ko reitin | Nepsiiation
Cad Musctuime: Mic-0 Mosdel 201] A A5RAT IAEAT | LBKd -'EI_'iTJ:II]-m Farno Teatiles Nomldin | Nensiiriion
Tatul IMIILTE 4TITOTI TSN SRTIEM IR
2025 2024
Depreciation charge for the year is allocated as under: Nete Rupees
Clonst ool sales 28 1993810458 225 (M3 585
Administrative CXPLISCS 29 25,297,261 26,808,757
224,678,309 251 Hi2 342
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4.2

5.1

—&
Capital work in progress
Plant and Civil Works Total
Machinery
Rupees
Meavement during the yeoar ended Sune 30, 2024
Opening balance 68,419,145 1,972,503 T0,391 645
Additions during the vear 37.652,654 212.619,883 6,272,537
06071799 24 5923 386 130,664, 185
Transler to operating hixed asseis (1054424000 (1672386)  (107,116,796)
Closing balance 627 389 22 92, () 23,547 3849
Mavement during the year ended June 30, 2025
Chpening balance 617,389 22.920,000 23.547.389
Charged to profit and loss (627.389) - (627.389)
Closing balance - 22,920,000 22,920,000
2025 2024
LONG TERM DEPOSITS Nove Rupees
Long term advances 437,500 437,500
Long term security deposits 51 31.865,956 32,865,956
33,303 456 33,303,456
Long term security deposits
WAPDA 17,409,760 17409 760
HESCO 5,118,100 S, 118,100
S50GC 041,168 7041168
Pakistan Stare Ol Limited 45100010 450,000
Others 2,846,928 2,846,928
32,865,956 32,865,956
DEFERRED TAXATION - net
Charge /
Chiarge {Imeiemae )
Opening balanee iruw‘rﬁaljl recigiized in Cloding balasive
recognized in wthier
prafit or loss comprehensive
i
Eor the vear ended June 30, 2028 Huopees
Tavahle fempewrary differences
« Accelerated tax depreciation 75899398 (19.915.905) - 155,980,493
- surplus on revaluaiton of fixed assers 108,689,124 (5434 450) To 21527 179,468, 1495
IR4.5HE,512 (253523061} Th2 1,527 435,445,058
Diediersihle femporuey differences
- Prowisions [orslow moying siore ilems (2.571,065) - - (2,571,065)
= Linmused 1ax lossess (270,626,491 {138, T17.587) - (412, 344.07K)
- Prosvision tor Off the Grid (Capiave Power Plints) Lewy - {2157 3R%) - (2 A57.38%)
- Prowvisions for sxpected eredit losses (2.098.615) {491, 956) - {28%L,571)
« Stafl retivemient benefits {41.064,621) 19,146,562 114,155 (201,803,614
{219,660,792) (122,220,078} 114155 {441,766, TOT)
64,927,730 (147,573,431} 70,324,682 (6,321,019}
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140}



?I

8.

8.1

Nadeemy

{lpening balanae Charge /(reversal)  Chinegee / {income) Closing balonee
{testuted) recognzed in profit recognized in
o loss ather
resned) conprehensive
e
Far the edl Jume M), 2024 Rupes
Tavahle femporary aifferences
- Aceelesated tax depreciation 264 527508 [1371,880 - 275,899,398
- Suerplus on revalumion of fined assets | 14,353 544 (5693, 770) - |18 R0, 124
TR AIN412 SATE 0 - JB4.588,51
Deductible remmporary differmmces
- Excess o munimaan tax carmed [orwesd &8 301,578) BR.311,978 - -
- [Deferred governament grant (2IRTA1H) [ 188,640 - (2571065
- Unised tux fosses (95,830,538 {177, 786,553) - {273.626,490)
- Provisions for expeeted credit losscs H2.637.7344 10,239,139 - 2398.615)
- Biaff retirement benefis (32,664,643 ) (5485 880 2000, (0% (41064621 )
{231 841,732} (H4412,962) T 00 (S {319,650, 752
[£7 (68 8 (19234 8382} 3 90, 8 549277
2025 2024
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS Naote: Rupees
Stores in hand 74,572,962 [43.E11. 831
Spares in hand 8H. 214,004 10 880,347
Looke tools 1,047,432 1,620,324
163,834,403 254,612 522
Less: Provision agains! slow moving slere ilems (8.565,741) (8865741}
154,968,662 245,746,781
STOCK IN TRADE
Faw material im hand 447,169,843 517,593,937
Row material in transit 63,511,930 S02,827,124
510,681,813 1020423061
Work- in- process 46,467,934 06,935,774
Finished goods 369,604,000 356,945,027
Waste 33,531,802 S0.71%.713
81 Yl 25,6349 1,555,022 575

This ineludes stocks amounting to Bs. 101330 million (2024: Bs. 450 million) pledged with banks o5 security

with banks against finance facilitics.

TRADE DEBTS

Local trade debis - unsecured
Indirect export debts - unsecured

Less: Provision for expected credit losses

2025 2024
Nine Rupees
G10,061.862 1512271, 776
G1l,061,562 LS12271.776
2.4 (9967, 485) (.27 1.085)
G, 094,377 104,000,691

]
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2025 2024
LA Movement in provision for expected credit losses Mo
Opening balance $.271.085 50,526,699
Reversal during the vear il (1,729.491) {24.535,145)
Charge for the vear 37 4,700,000 4,249,930
Write-off during the year (1.274.109) (21,970,449
Closing balance 9967485 B271,085
10. INVESTMENTS
Term Deposits Receipts ( TDRs) Ml 177,307,921 172,307,921
10.1 These TDRS were deposited as margin agamst bank guarantees issned by different banks as disclosed in note No.

26.2, This carries markup at a rate of [4.25% - 20.5% per annum (2024 16.25% - 20%), These TDRs shall

mature between 6 to 12 months.

20025 2024
L1. LOANS, ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS Naie Rupees
Loans o staff and workers T GR2.549 1.06l,403
Advance 1o suppliets 4.3 45,052,570 27985732
Deposit with Mazir High Count of Sindh 2323 115,272,757 115,272,757
Prepayments 1,401,867 914,205
162.409.743 145,233,087
11.1 These represent interest-free loans provided to employees in aceordance with the Company policy, The louns are
secured agminst their retirement benelits and dre recoverable in equal monthly installinents.
2025 224
12 UTHER RECEIVABLES Merter —————— Rupees
Interest meome receivible 9,924,612 22.190,102
(Mhers 13,666,303 13,606,361
23,590,975 35,856,465
13 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Income rax refundable T30 17,104,567 -
Sales tax refundable - 74,030,149
17104367 74,030,149
13.1 Income tax refundable / (payahle)
Ohpening balance {4,398.485) 55.863.031
A taxes deducted ot source B h67.551 76,507 354
T8.260.096 132,370,387
Levies 34 (61.164,729) (140,768, BTI)
Current tax 35 - -
(61,164,729 {140, 7GR, 8T2)
Closing balance 17.104.367 (R, 398,485)
13.1.1  Starus of inconie tax assessments

Ihe income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up o, and including, the s year 2024. Tax
retums filed by the Company are deemed (0 be assessed under section 120 of the Tocome Tz Ordinance, 200
unless selected for re-assessment or audit by the taxation authorities. However, al any time during a period of five
years from the dale of filing of u returm, the laxation authorities may select an meome s retum Gled by the
Company for the purpose of re-assessment.

)
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213
14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Nete Rupees
Cash in hand 2,182,636 41,340,670
Cash at bank - curment accounls 21,207,107 22,509,762
Cash ot bank - deposit accaunts 4.1 4.2 ZX.6R0.136 [ 18190483
49 887,243 40,700,247
55,064,570 82,240,817
14.1 These carry markup rate ranging fram 7.3% to 19% per annum on daily product basis (2024: 14.23% to 20% per
ammm .
14.2 At the reporting date, the Company has issved chegues amounting o Bs, Wil (2024; Ks, 116384 million) i its

gecount with Seneri Bank, These cheques were not clearesd snd were presented as part of cash and bank balances
in the financial statements.

15 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID U'P CAPITAL

015 1024 025 2004
— Mumber of shares — Hupees
Oredariry shares of Ry 10 cach issued:

11,407 485 [1A407 485 - for considevation paid in cesh 114,074,850 114,074 850
S0 EMI A0 - s bonns shares ASAML I LERTIRT
3,350,250 T3.354,.250 - ok i pesull ol merger of Madeem Power Generation 33,592,500 33,502 500

{Privage) Limited with ond mto the Comipany
11,266,735 21,206,735 212,667,350 212,667,351
15.1 There are no agreements among sharcholders for voting rights, boord selection, nghts of first refusal and block
voting,
16. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY. 2025 2024
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -net Rupees
On teaschold land
Gﬂ).'!-.'i .H'EHPJIH.\
Opening balanee G18.615.900 QIR.6] 5,960
Revalustion increase recognized during the yeur 865,000,000 -
783615960 O18.615.9060
On Mactory and non-factory building
{iross swrplus
Opening balance 374,790,082 194423771
Revalustion increase recogmzed during the year 262,794,922 -
Ineremental depreciation wansferred 1o retained carmings (18, 7349.504) {19,633,689)
GLY.B45.500 374,790,082
Related deferred rax charge
Opening balance (104,689,123) (1 14.382,8493)
Revaluation incrense recognised durmg the vear (TH.210.527) =
Incremental depreciation ransferred o retsned earnings 5,434,456 5.693,770
(179,465.194) i 108,689,123)
439380306 266,100,959
Total surplus on revaloation - net of deferred tax charge 2,212,996.266 1,184, 716,919

17.

CONTRIBUTION FROM ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKING

The associated Company, M Naodeem International {Pyt) Limited. ond the Company agreed that the loan would
be imtercst free and can be repayable at the discretion of the Company, Hence, the loan was treated os g capital

contribution in accordaonee with TAS-32.

73l
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18,

19.

19.1

[ nd

193

19.4

19.5

LOAN FROM DIRECTORS

Druring the vear ended June 30, 2025, The company's directors Mr. Zahid Mazhar and Mrs. Maila Zahid, and the
Company agreed thal the loan would be interest free and can be repayable at the discretion of the Company.
Henee, the loan was treated as a capital contribution in accordance with [AS-32,

s 2024
LONG TERM FINANCING Nesger —————— Rupees
Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF)
- Bank Al Falah Limiteed LN GLCE RN HEBS2.000
- Hobib Bank Limited Ia.2 85,126,580 1,376,551
- Askari Bank Limited 19.3 X1.551.520 39,439 400
- 15 Bank Limited ey 13045000 1S 000
Term Loans
- Askart Bank Limired 195 134,859,019 L0, 560,594
- Soner Bank Limited s THO4T 308 105263158
- Habib Metro Bank Limited 8.7 50,107,140 58,821,428
263,913,527 324,645,185
460,280,627 SR6.218. 166
Less: Current portion shown under current linbilities 443 (143,776,910 (137,704, T03)
Non-current maturity 316,503,717 448,453,463

Long Term Financing Facility (LTFF) from M/s. Bank Al Falah Limited

This represents the amount availed for purchase of 2 MTU gas generators. Tt s secured by having the exclusive
charge over the imported machinery ulong with 25% margin and ranking charge of Rs. 23 million over the
existing plant and machinery located Noorighad unit, Distrier Jamshoro, Sindh with the tenor of & years
(including 1-year grace period commencing from the date of first disbursement) at the mark-up rate of 4,5% to be
repaid in 16 equal semi-annually installments.

Long Term Financing Facility (L'TFF) from M/s. Habib Bank Limited

This represents the amount availed for purchase of new plant and machinery (Spinming system, carding machine
and bale plucker). 1t is secured by exclusive hypothecation charge over speaific plant and machinery for Rs. 130
million with 23% margin over the plant and machinery amounting 10 Rs. 44 million with the wenor of 7 years
tmcluding |-year grace period commencing from the date of first dishursement) at the mark-up rate of 4.5% to be
repaid 1 24 equal quarterly installments,

Long Term Financing Facility {LTFF) from M/s, Askari Bank Limited

This represents the amount availed onder LTFF oained trom M/s. Askari Bank Limited. The facility has been
abtained for procurement of machinery in relation to the BME of existing plant und machinery of the Company,
and is secured by first exclusive and specific charge over the machinery being imported under the letter of credit
{lo be located st the Company's manufaciuring facilities in Nooriabad and Kotri, District Jamshoro, Sindh with
25% margin) with the tenar of 7 wears {including 2-yesr proce period commencing from the date of first
disbursement) at the mark-up rate of 7% 1o be repaid in 20 equal quarterty installments,

Long Term Financing Facility (LTFF) from M/s. IS Bank Limited

This represents the amount availed under LTFF obtained for procurement of machinery in relation 1o the BMR of
existing plant and machinery of the Company, Tt s secured by first exclusive and specilic charge over the
machinery being imported under the lemter of credit (to be located at the Company's manufacturing facilities in
Moorighad and Koiri, District Jamshoro, Sindh with 2004 margin) with the lenor of 3 years at the mark-up rate of
5% to be repand in 20 equal quarterly installments.

Term Loan from M/s. Askari Bank Limited

This represents the amount availed under a term finance facility (will be converted in SBP-LTFF) obtained from
Wiz Askar Bank Limited. The focility has been obtained for procurement of machinery in relation to the BMR of
existing plant and mechinery of the Company, and is secured by first exclusive and speeific charge over the
machinery being imported under the letter of credit ito be located ot the Compuny's maneficturing facilities in
Meoriabad and Kotri, District Jamshoro, Sindh with 23% margin) with the tenor of 7 vears (including 2-vear
wrace period commencing from the date of first disbursement) at the mark-up rate of 3-Month KIBOR + 2. 25% o
be repaid i 20 equal quarterly installments (1o be commenced after the aforesaid grace period).

[44]
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19.6 Term Laan from M/s. Soneri Bank Limited

This represents the amoun! availed under a term finance Gacility (will be converted i SBP-LTEF) obtained from
Mis, Sonert Bank Limited, The facility has been obtained Tor bwo brand new Gas Gensels MTU 16VADDDGS of
1521 KW, and 18 secured by first exclusive and speeific charge over the machinery being imported under the letter
of credit (1o be located at the Company's manufacturing facilities in Nooriahad md Koetri, District Jamshoro,
Sindh with 23% margin} with the tenor of 7 vears (including |-year grace period commencing from the date of
first dishursement) at the mark-up rate of 3-Month KIBOR + 3%, to be repaid in 28 cqual quarterly installments
{te be commenced afier the aforesaid grace period),

19.7 Term Loan from M/s. Habib Metro Bank Limited
This represents the amount availed for purchase of five Carding Machine, It is secured by having the exclusive
charge on machinery slong with margin of 4096 for Rs. 102 million with the tener of 8 vears (including |-year
grace period commencing from the date of first disbursement) at the mark-up rate of 3-Month KIBOR + 2% to be
fepaid in 32 equal quarterly installments (o be commenced after the aforesaid grace periad).

20. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS - GRATUITY
As disvlosed i note 3.9 (o these finaneial statements, the Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its
slafl emplowvees, The latest actuanial valuation was camied out a5 at June 30, 2025, using the Projected Unit Credit

Method.
2025 2024
20.1 Movement in defined benefit obligation Note —————— Rupees
Opening defined benefit obligation 141,602,143 112,653,943
Current service cost 49,699,300 41,141,173
Past service cost - 750,714
Interest cost 11.503.374 14,803,377
Benefits paid (127,226,336) (43,11247T7)
emeasurements 2003 (393.638) 13,365413
Closing defined benefit obligation 75,184,843 141,602,143
0.2 Expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 49,699 300 41,141,173
Past service cost - TH0,714
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 11,503,374 14,803,377
61,202,674 36,605,264
20,3 Remeasurement losses | (gains) recognised in other
comprehensive income
Actuarial fosses / (eains) on defined heaefit obligation duee fo:
- Changes in financial assumptions (654, 900) {4,193 344}
- Experience adjustments 261,262 19,558,757
(393,638) 15365413
2025 2024
20.4 Sensitivity analysis on defined benefil obligation — Rupees
Discount rate + 100 bps 71,213,188 107271 626
Discount rate - L00 bps 79,655,341 118,711,415
Salary increment rate + [0 bps 79,843,682 [1%,711.415
Salary increment rate - 10 bps Ti,968,321 107,182,807
20.5 Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss 14.75%, 16.255%,
[hscount rate used for vear end obligation 11.75% 14.75%,
Rate of increase in salaries - next | year 10.75%, L0,
Rate ol increase in-salaries - {uture years 10, 75% 13.75%
Mortality rates TSLIC 2001-2005 _ SLIC 2001-2005

&l
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2.6

0.7

20.8

21.

21.1
2.

221

23,

Estimated expenses ta be charged to profit and loss
Current service ¢ost
[nterest cost

Kxpected maturity analysis of undiscounted cashflows

Less than a year
Between 1-2 years
Between 2-3 vears
Between 3-4 vears
Between 4-5 years
Over 5 years

As of June 30, 20235 the weighted average duration of the defined benefil plan was 6 vears (2024: 5 years),

LOAN FROM RELATED PARTIES

Loan from Nadeem International (Private) Limited
Opening balance

Transfer o capital reserves

Received during the year

Repaymen! during the year

Note

7

204

The loan is unsecured, interest-free, and repavable on demand,

LOANS FROM DIRECTORS
Opening balance
Louns received during the vear

Loans repaid during the year
Closing balance

These loans are interest-free and repayable on-demand.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYARLES
Creditors:;

- local

- foreign

Accrued expenses

Provision for gas tanff difference

Provision for OIT the Grid {Captive Power Plants} Levy
Prowvision for anti-dumping duty

Provision against Excise and Taxation charges
Advance from customers

Worker's Profit Participation Fund pavable
Waorker's Welfare Fund payable

Withholding income tax payable

Withholding sales tux payvable

Sales tax pavable

Other liabilities

22:1

MNote

44.3

23
232
233
23.4

23 5443

236
23.7

443

22,215,647 49,699,500
7,693,328 17,560,902
29,908,975 67,260,202
19,419,423 45,090,358
14,750,618 35,698,157
14,250,531 3,651,496
12,159,111 27,389,236
17,893.372 26,134,874
674,700,356 2.209.958,193
2025 2024
Rupees
34.450.000 38 200,000
20,500,000 1L T00 0
(8,300,000) (15,450,000}
46.650.000 34,450,000
139,300,000 OF 800000
- 53,000,000
139,300,000 | 500,500, {CH)
- (11,500,000}
139300000 139300000
2025 2024
Rupees
527.502,731 689 340,627
50,439,966 23,560 8
577,942,697 712,907,433
135,389,973 348,081,084
111,558,165 210,825,478
T.439.274 -
24,611,312 19,053 287
10,541,603 10,017,753
4,952,391 25.414,114
- 3,832 456
250,706 34,640,362
4,447,744 2,902,323
15,703.253 -
11,597,933 IH.654
005,435,052 [,368,712,944
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13.1 Acerued expenses
Gias charges 3,660,626 217,391 484
Electric Charges 50,588,105 | 445874
Salaries and wages 41,262,538 ShAd55422
Comimission o sale agents 27,648,197 HE 507 242
thers 12,230,507 10,791 057
135,389,973 J48, 681,054
232 Provision for gas tariff difference
Provision in respect of?
= Suit No, [29 of 2007 23.2.1 13,860,348 LOS, TS0,
= Suits No, | 79 of 2020 and 1798 of 2020 2322 - 7386701
- Buit No, 5220 of 2025 23.23 97,688,777 07 68,777
111,558,165 210825478

2301 On Aupust 31, 2015, the (il and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) issued S.RLO. 87612015 whereby, with
effect from September 01, 2013, the sale price of natural gas for gas consumers falling under the category
‘Industrial’ was increased 1o Rs. 00 per MMBTL (a5 against the previcusly applicable wariff of Rs, 488,23 per
MMBTU notified vide S.R.O, O1(1/2013 dated January (01, 2013). The said notification was widely challenged by
companies operating in the textile industry (including the Company vide Suit Mo, 129 of 2017} before the
Hanourble High Court of Sindh ("the Court'y, Tn its interim order dated January T8, 2017, the Court held that, 1l
further orders of the Court, the plamtilTs (e, the gas consumersh shall contiue w0 deposit their menthly bills at
the mte of Rs, 458,23 per MMBTU and the differentiol amount of Rs, 111,77 per MMBTL shall be secured by
providing post-dated cheques to the Nazit of the Court, Accordingly, until September 2018, the Company
continued 1o pay s monthly gas bills at the rate of Rs 488,23 per MMBTL and recognized a provision fir the
differential lability which, as at June 30, 2024, amounted 1o Rs, 13,86 million (2024: Rs. 105,75 million).

On Seprember 06, 2024, the Sindh High Court declared the impogned notification void b initio, a decision
favorable to the Company. The Federation and Sw Southern Gas Company { 35GC) subsequently filed an appeal
(H.C.A No. 336 of 2024), which the Court dismissed on February 03, 2025, dirccting the Nazir 1o relegse the post.
dated chegues. The Federation and other parties have now challenged this decision hefore the Honourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan through C.P.L A No. 1017 of 2025, which remains pending as of the reporting date.

2322 On October 23, 2020, the OGRA issued S.R.O. No. [ LOT(1)2020 whereby, with effect from September 01, 2020,
the sale price of natural gas for the aforesaid class of gas consumers was increased to Rs. 819 per MMBTU {as
against the previously applicable tariff of Rs. 786 per MMBTLU. The =zaid notification was also widely challenged
by companies pperating in the textile industry (including the Company vide Suit No. 1790 of 2020 & Suit No.
1798 of 2020) before the Courl. [n it interim order dated May 25, 2021 the Court held that, il further orders of
the Court, the plaintiffs (ie. the gas consumers) shall continpe to deposit their monthly bills at the rate of Re, 786
per MMBTLU and the differential wimount of Bs, 33 per MMBTL shull be secured by providing post-dated chegues
to the Wazir of the Court, Accordingly, for the period from March 2021 to January 2023, the Company has
recogmized 2 provision for the differential mte of Bs, 33 per MMBTL which, as at June 30, 2023, amounted to RS,
42.23 million (2023: Rs, 42.23 million).

O February 18, 2023, the Court announced its final verdict in Suit Mo, 1790 of 2020 and Suit Na. 1798 of 2020
{und several other connected suits on similar mutters) vpholding the validity of the sloresaid notification (e
SO0 TT0TN2020 dated October 23, 2020 issucd by the OGRAY The said decision also discusses, at length, the
issue of ineremental tanfT chargeable 1o gas consamers falling under the eategory 'Caplive Power' and made 11
explicit that that the Company would fall into such eategory of gas consumers and, thus, would be subjected 10 the
ineremental tariff of Rs. 852 per MMBTU as specified in the 5SRO0 TIOT Y2020 In view of that development,
the Company recognized o further provision of Rs. 42,23 million, representing the difference between the tariff
chargeable al the aforessid rale of Rs, 332 per MMBTLU and the rate of Rs 819 per MMBTLU chargeable o
"Industrial’ gas consumers, for the period from Mareh 2021 to January 2023,

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Company paid an amount of Rs. 7.38 million (2024: 77.05 million) to
Sui Southern Gas Company (along with monthly gas bills) in respect of the said provision,

@ .
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On 08 November 2023, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) issued notification bearing No. OGRA-10-
FRV202Y increased the gas rate retrospectively from | Novemnber 2023 to Rs. 2400 per MMBTL {as agaimst the
previously applicable tanfl of Bs L 100 per MMBTU), The Company along with others filed petition in the
Hinourable Sindh High Coort dgainst the notification challenging the increase of pus rate and its retrospective
implication from 1 November 2023, As dirceted by the High Court | the plaintiffe (i.c. the pas consumers) shall
comiinue to pay their monthly bills at the fate of R, 1,100 per MMBTU and the differential amount of 115272
million inclusive of sales tax hoas been deposited with the Nazir High Court @ Rs 1,300 per MMBTL |
Agcordingly, the Company continued to pay its monthly gas bills ar the rate of Rs. 1,100 per MMBTLU 1o Sui
Southern Cas Company Limited (35GC), In relation to the smount deposited above with the Nazir High Court |
the Company has recorded a provision of Rs. 9768 million excluding sales tax.

During the year ended 30 June 2025, the matter carfier disclosed as Suit Mo, 2123 of 2023 before the Sindh High
Court was transfereed to the senior civil judge / assistant sessions judge VI Karsehi (East), and renumbered as
Suit Mo, 5220 o 2025, The case remuins pending adjudication,

Provision for OIT the Grid {Captive Power Plants) Levy

During the veir, the O the Grid (Captive Power Plants) Levy Ordinance, 2025 was promulgated by the President
on January 31, 2025 and, within 120 davs, was approved by Parfiament on May 31, 2025, Under this Act, every
captive power plant iz required to pay to the Federal Govermment a levy on the consumption of natural gas or
RILNG af the rale prescribed under Section 4 of the Act, as natified by the Federal Government from time to time,
On March 07, 2025, the Federal Government, through a notification, set the levy at Rs. 791 per MMBTLU, The
Ministry of Energy subsequently directed S3GC 1w recover this levy st the notified rate retrospectively for the
month of February 2025, and S5GC issued the corresponding bill on May (12, 2025,

The Campany, along with olher affected porties, Rled @ constitutional petition (C.P, No. 1802 of 2025) before the
Honourable Sindh High Court, Karachi, on May 6, 2025, challenging the remospective application of the
notification. In its interim order of the same dote, the Cowrt directed that, until further orders, the plaintiffs {gas
consamers} shall deposit the amount demanded for February 2025 with the Mazir of the Court in the form of a pay
order of bank guarantee. On July 3, 2025 the Company subnuifted a bank puarantee of Rs. B.778 million,
cquivilent to Bs. T per MMBTU (refer to Note 25, 1.2, and has accordingly recogmized & provision of the same
amount as-a matter of prudence.

Provision for anti-dumping duoty

Pursunnt o the powers conferred 1o il under section 501} af the Ani-Dumping Act, 2013, the National Tanff
Commisston (the "Commission” ), in order to prevent material mjury to the domestie mdustry, vide s nobficabon
o, A D.C No, 392022NTC/PSF dated February 04, 2022 {'the impugned notification’), imposed, for a period of
five venrs, un anti-tumping duty on the import of "Polyester Staple Fiber' (PST) [classified under PCT Hewding
F503.2000] from certain exporting countrivs. As per the swid notification, the amoum of duty payable 18 to be
determined by applyving the specified rates on the import assessed value of PSF,

Being sggrieved by the said notification, the Company, on February 11, 2022, filed an appeal bearing na.
4392022 belore the Anti-Dumping Appellate Tribunal, Istamabad CAIMAT") on the grounds that the duty has been
determined and imposed in sheer violstion of various provisions of the Anti-Dumping Act, 20135 and that the
Commission has [ailed o properly apprecizte the facts. Consequently. in the appeal, the Company praved that the
said notification be declared as legally invalid and be set aside. In addition. the Company also submitled 5 stay
application to ADAT (identified as M_A Stoy 2342022 and doted Febroary 11, 2022) seeking that the operation
of the mmpugned notification be suspended unnl the final disposition of the appeal,

In order to prevent the concerned muthoritics from taking any cocreive measures for the recovery of the imposcd
duty prier io any decision by the ADAT, the Company. on February 11, 2022, filed o Wit Petition (W.F,
M S08/2022) before the Honourable Tslamnbad High Court ('the Court'y which vide it ceder dated on February
15, 2022 disposad off the petition by restraining the authoritics from taking any coercive action against the
Company untit 2 decision is reached by the ADAT either in the aforesaid appeal or the siay application, whichever
eecurs eurlier,

As of the reporting date, hoth the aforementioned appenl and stay spplication were pending for adjudication
before the ADAT, In view of the aforesaid stoy granted by the Court, no payments in relation to the anti-dumping
duty have been made by the Company. As a matter of prudence, the Company his recognized the full smount of
the duty pavithle which, ns at June 30, 2025, amounted w B 2461010 million (2024 R, 19053 million).

{a8]
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AT

25.

Advance from customers

Nadeemy

During the vear, the performunce obligations undertying the openimg contract labiity of Ky, 2514 million were
satiafieal in full. Accordingly, thesaid lability was recorded as revenue doring the veir,
Information regarding the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations underlying the closing contract liability
of s 4.9 million 5 not presented sinee the expeeted duration of all the conmmacts entered inte with the customers (s

leay than one yoar

Workers' Profit Participation Fund payable
Orpening balance
Interest churped duning the vear

Foavment during the vear

Waorkers' Welfare Fund payable
Crpening balunve

Adpustment

Inicrest acerwed for the vear

Reversal | Payment during the year

ACCRUED MARKUP
Murkup secrued on:

- Long term financing

- Bhort teri borrowings

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Running Finance (RF)

- Samba Bank Limited

- 45 Bunk Liamted

- Bank Al Falah Limited

< Boneri Bank Limibed

- Habib Metre Bank Limited

= Askari Bank Limited

Cash Finanee (CF)

= J5 Bink Limited

- Bank Al Fulah Limuted

= Sonert Bank Limited

- Hathib Meto Bank Linited
- Mzkari Hank Limited

= Habib Bank Limited

Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM)
- J8 Bank Limmited

- Bank Al Falah Limited

- Hahib Metro Bank Limited

- Hahib Benk Limited

Finance against Packing Credit (FPC)
- Samba Bank Limited

Istisng Financing
= Thubai Tslamic Bank Limgted

Post dated chegoes discounting
- Bonk Al Faloh Limited

254
23.2
23.3
254
235
256

257

238

259
2510
231
2512

2546

2025 2024
Rupees
- 75,823,742
- 65,440
i T5H80, 188
- (75 %89, |48}
ARIZAS 32,247 647
- (1,592,127}
- FAMLEY]
ARIZAS 36,086,561
(3.832.456) (32.254,105)
- 1.832.456
12.514.941 23,520,041
B1.539.683 106,948 006
94,054,624 1 300469 64T
49,999,532 AU 354 hHY
W9, 908, T YUL1a Th2
43,183,051 42,746,176
200,000,000 199,723 876
119,959 997 Taues 517
49,931,716 44 674,880
S62,042 9% 516,416,980
B1.663,222 105,121 476
69,769,225 25,920,000
347634154 300,380,360
WOES01TH 1 5 16.a6]
104,221,136 A2 843871
139,268,887 S5 0000400
333,106,790 iy 184, 208
- o 07 6
1973115 208,418,386
- T2.235.9495
132,081,187 2o B4 5 022
135054302 G4 606,572
119.700.000 | [ 119700040 |
119,700,000 118, 700000
EHIRTETRITHI 370, 200080
71,694,558 15 403 /R0
2,122,598.650 2,332.411.500
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25.1

252

253

254

25.5

25.6

25.7

5.8

259

25.10

25,11

This represents the amount availed under o running (inance facility oblained from M/s. Samba Bank Limited with
a limit of Ra. 50 million (2024: R, 50 mallion). The facility camies mark-up ot the rate of [-Month KIBOR plus
2% (2024: 1-Month KIBOR phis 2%) per annum and is secured by way of first pari-passu hypothecation charge
aver all present and future stocks and receivables amounting to Rs. 367 million with 25% margin and first pari-
passu charge over the fxed assels {including land ond buildings) amountmg 1o Re 227 million with 25% mirgn,
The expiry date of the facility 15 May 31, 2025,

This represents the amount availed under a mnning finance facility obtained from M/s, JS Bank Limited with a
lmit of Rs. 100 million (2024 R 100 million). The fucilitg carties mik-up a1 the mite of 3-Month KIBOR plus
225% 12024 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum snd 15 securad by way of first pan-passu charge over (he
Company's fixed assets {including land, buildings and plant & machimery) amounting to R 134 million with 25%
murgin over the market value of fixed assets. The expary dite of the facility s Seprember 30, 2025,

This represents the amotnt availed inder & runmng finance facility obtwined from Mis, Bank Al Falsh Limated
with g limit of Rs. 45 milhon (2024: Rs. 45 million). The facility carries mark-up ot the rate of |-Month KIBOR
plus 2,25% (2024: 1-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%) per-annun angd is secured by way first pari-passu chargs over the
Compamy's fixed assets (neluding land, buildings and plant & machinery ) amounting (o Bs, 75 million with 23%
margin , The expiry date of the facility is October 31, 20235,

This represents the amount availed under a minning finance facility obtsined from M5, Seneri Bank Limited with
a limit of Rs. 200 million {2024: Rs. 200 millien), The facility carres mark-up ot the rate of 3-Month KIBOR plus
2.25% (2024; 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and the fucility is secured by a first pani passu charge over
current assets (stocks and rade debis) of the Company amounting o Bs 134 million, as well as a first pari passu
chirge over registered stocks amounting wo Bs, 40 million, The facility will expire on March 31, 2024,

This represents the amount availed under a mnning finance facility obtained from M/ Habib Metro Bank
Limited with a limit of Rs, 75 million (2024. Rs. 75 million). The facility camies mark-up at the rate of 3-Montl)
KIBOR plus 2.25% (2024: 3-Maonth KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and s secured by way ol first charge over
industrial land located at plot Mo, A-293 SITE Noonabad amounting to R 200 million, The expiry date of the
[acility 1s December 31, 2025

This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obained from M/s. Askari Bank Limited with
a bt of Ba, 50 pmlbon (2024 B 50 muilion), The Faciiiny eamies mark-up ot the mate of 3-Month KIBOR plos
2% {2024: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2%) per annum, The facility will expire on December 31, 2025,

This represents the amount aviiled under o cash Bnance facility obtained (rom M/ IS Bank Limited wiil a limil
of i 250 million (2024: Rs. 250 million), The facility carries mark-up at the mte of 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%
(2024: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and 15 secured by way of first exclusive charge over pledge of
stocks, (Raw Cotton, Yarm and Pelvester Fibrek. The expiry date of the facility is September 30, 2025,

This represents the amount availed under a cash finance facility obtamed from Mis. Bank Alfalah Limited with a
limit of Rs, 255 million {2024: Ks. 255 million}, camying mark-up at the mte of 1-Month KIBOR plus 2.25% per
annum (2024 |-Month KIBOR plus 2.25% per annum), and is secured against a first pan passu charge over
current assets of the Company for Bs 75 million with 0% monzin and o fivst pen passu charge over fixed assets
tland. building. plant and machinery) located at the Noorabad unlt with 25% marging The expiry date of the
Fility 15 Ovtober 31, 2025,

This represents the amoun availed under a cash finance faciliny obtamed from Mis, Soneri Bank Limited with a
limit of Ba, 375 million (2024; R 375 mullion), The fhcility carmes mark-up at the rate of” 3-Month KIBOR plus
2.25% (2024; 3-Month KIBOR plus 2.23%) per annum and is secured by way of first exclusive charge over
pledge of stocks: (Raw Cotton, Yam and Polyvester Fibre), The expiry date of the facility is March 31, 2026

This represents the amount availed under o cash finance facility obtained from M5 Habib Metro Bank Limited
with a limit of K5, 200 million (2024; B, 275 million), The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-Month KIBOR
plus 2.235% (2024: -Momth KIBOR plus 2.25%) per annum and is secured by way of pledie charge over pledge
af stocks (Raw Cotton ) of Rs.223 million with 11 margin. The expiry date of the facility is December 31, 2025,

This represemts the amount availed under a cash finanee facility obtained from M/'s, Askart Bank Limited with a
limit of Ra. 220 million (2024: Rs. 220 million), The fucility cormes mark-up ot the e of 3-Month KIBOR plos
2% {20r24: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2% per annum and is secured by way of first exclusive charge over pledge of
stocks, {Raw Cotton, Yam and Polvester Fibre), The expiry date of the facility is Decemnber 31, 2025,
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2512 This represenis the amount availed under o cash finance facility obtaimed from My, Habib Bank Limited with a
limmnt of B4 450 miflion (2024: R 450 million). The Geility oarries mork-up o the rate of [-Month KIBOR plus
1.85% (2024: [-Month KIBOR plus 1.85%) per anmun and 15 secured by way of first exclusive charge over
pledee of stocks, (Raw Coton, Yam snd Polyester Fibre), The sxpiry date of the faeility 15 March 31, 2025,

25.13  This represents the amount availed under the Anance against impont merchandise obtained from M/s, Bank Al
Falah Limited with a mit of Rs. 104 million (2024: Rs, 300 million), The facility carries mark-up at the rote of 1-
Month KIBOR plos 2,25% (2024; 1-Month KIBOR plus 2.25%) per anmem and s seeored same as per nofe No,
253, The expiry diste of the foeility 35 October 31 2025

25.14  This represents the omount availed under the fnance agningt imported merchandise obtained from Mos Habib
Bank Limited with 4 b of Bs, 600 million (2023: Rs: 150 million), The facilite carres mark-wp ar the gane of 1-
Month KIBOR plus [85% (2023 1-Month KIBOE ples 1,85%) per anmum and is secured by way ol s
exclusive charge over pledge of stocks, (Raw Cotton, and Palyester Fibre) . The expiry date of the facility is
March 31, 2025,

1515 This represents the smount availed under the finanee agninst packing credit obtaimed from M/, Samba Bank
Limited with a limit of Bs, 170 million (2024: Bs. 170 million). The facility carmes mark-up st the e of 1-
Maonth KIBOR plus 2% (2024: 1-Month KIBOR phes 2%) per anmum and is secuned by wiy of [irst pari-passu
hypoethecation charge over all present and future stocks and recenvables smounting o K= 367 mallion with 25%
margin and first pan-passu charge over the fixed sssets (ineluding land and buildings) smounting o Rs. 227
millicn with 25% margin. The expiry date of the facility i May 31, 2026

500 Fhis reprosents the smount aviiled onder the sisng Anancing obtmned from MYs. Duban lslamie Bank Limited
with a limit of Rs; S0 million (2024; Ra, 400 million). The (acility carries mark-op al the mie of relevanl KIBOR
plus 2225% (H024: KIBOR phis 2.25%) per annom amd i5 secored by way of squitahle mortgege over lamd and
building on Plat Moo E<11, SITE, Kotd amounting to Bz 375 million with 25%, margin, frst port passa charee
over plant and machinery ar Plot Mo, E-11, SITE, Kom amounting o Bs 15834 million with 23% margin and
12th mnking hypothecation churpe over stocks and receivables of the company amounting to Bs. 334 mullion
company {inclusive of 25% margin). The expiry date of the facilivy is January 31, 2026,

25.17  As of the reporting dote, the Company hod unuihzed fucilities for shorl term bomrowings available from abeve
mseritioned banks amounting to Be | 048 million (2024: By, 1048 million).

. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
6.1 Contingendies

2611 In the matter of GIDC levy under act 2011 and GIDC Act 2015 the Company and other petitioners hod been
contesting the imposed levy sinee 2001 and it was in Awgust 13, 2020 that the honorabie Supreme Court of
Pakistan upheld the constitutionality of the GIDC Aer 2015,

Muoreover, i para 37 of the above judgment, the Honorable Supreme Count has held that the Cess mnder GIDC
Act, 2005 i levisble o those customers of notumal gas who on secount of their industrial or commercinl dealings
pass on jts burden to their customer, The Apex Court also restrained the Federal Govemment from charging
further Cess from the date of the judgment and slso mmposed certam eventwalinies on the basis of which this Cess
would become nullified,

The Company along with several other petitioners filed review petitions before the Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakisian secking a setting aside of the judgment of the Supreme Court and also challenging the applicability of the
GIDC on the Company including the amount to be recovered including 08 retrospective application: fromm the wear
A1 The Hon e Supreme Cowrt was pleased o elarify thar the question as o the remespective applicability of
GIDE from 2001 to 2005 would remain open 1o he decided by the Hon'ble High Courts,

As o oresult, the Company filed Suit 1343 /2020 in the Honorable High Court of Sindh alone with several other
companies on the ground that the Company falls within the category of gas consumers, whao hivve neither eollected
GIDE from their clients | enstomers and even not passed on Lo the customers through addition in the cost of goods
arid gccordingly, the Company is not lable o pay any mmounts pursdant o the above judgment of the Supreme
Court. The Company nlso raised the ssue of retrospective applicability of the Act from 2011, The Honorable
High Court has grunted stay (o the Compuny and other petitioners to the extent of payment of GIDC.

The Company has alse filed a Swt Mo, 16822021 and Suit Mo, 1338/2020 in the Honorable High Court of Sindh
at Kamchi along with several other petitioners secking a declamntion that after the lapse of time period of six
moiths for laying of the North-South gas pipe line allowed by the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistin, the At
fias now become im-operational and dead for all intents and purposes, Consequently, the Company is not linble to
peiey ey CGIEHC.
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26.1.2

26.1.3

26.14

16.1.5

6.2

During the vewr ended 30 June 2025, the matters carlier disclosed as Suit Mo, 168202021 and Surt No, 133820240
betore the Sindh High Court were transferred to the Courts of the Semor Crvl Jodge / Assistont Sessions Judge |,
Karuchi { East) and Senior Civil Judge [ Assistant Sessions Judge VI Karachi (East), and renumbered as Suit Mo,
2000 of 2025 and Suit Mo, 8812 of 2025, respectively, Both eases remain pendimg adjudication,

The legal counsel of the Company s given s considered opimion that i view of above two suils the Company
will mot be subgect to pay ony ameunt of Cess amd e Company has therefore o yview of the above opimon not
recorded sny provision.

In view of the above, the Company conlinues o disclose the GIDC mmounting to Rs. 368 million as s conlingent
lability (2024: Iy, 368 mullion).

Druring the year, the Off the Grd {Captive Power Plants) Levy Ordinance, 2025 was promulgated by the President
on 31 January 2025 and, within 120 days, was approved by Parliament on 10 June 2023, Under this Act. cvery
captive power plant 18 required o pay 4 levy 0 the Federal Govermment on the consumption of natursl gas o
RLMNG at the rute prescribed under Section 4 of the Act, a8 notified by the Federal Government firom time to time,
However, notifications have so far been issoed only for the months of February amt March 2025, For the months
of Aprl, May, amd June 2025, no rate has ver been notificd; therefore, due to the uncertainty of the amount no
provision has been necognized for these periods,

The Company filed o Constitutional Petition (CP Mo, D-2082 of 2025) before the Honourable Sindh High Court
on May 13, 2025, challenging the demand notice dated May 5, 2025, issued by the Board of Trustees of the
Employess” Old-Age Bencfits Institunion {EOBD. The said demand: amonnted 6 Rs. 7.2 millon, slong with a
penalty of Bz, 3.6 million, pentaining o the recovery of revised employee contributions for the period from July 1,
2022, to July 31, 2024, The Honourshle Court has restroined ORI from initisting any coercive action or
procecdings against the Company. Based on the legal counsel’s opinion that the Company has a strong case and
expects a favourable outcome, no provision has been recognized in this regand,

The Compony 15 contesting Civil Second Appeal No. 2 of 2024 before the High Cowt of Sindh ut Hyderabi in
respect of Plol Moo AZ6Y, adimessuring one acre, situated in e Sindh Industriel Teading Estste (SITE),
Moorabad, Jamshoro, The dispute arose when Sindh Indusirial Trading Estate Limited cancelled and withdiew the
miutation earlier tronsferred in the Company’s name throwgh its letler dased February 26, 2009, without prior notice
or hearing,

The property was purchased by the Company from Me. Ances Abdul Ghani under 3 duly exeented agreement disted
September [0, 2018, and mutation was trasisferred in the Company™s wame on Mareh 2, 2016, The initial suit (Suit
No. 10 of 2009) filed before the Senior Civil Judge-11, Kotr, was dismissed on April 3, 2023, and the decision was
upheld by the Additional District Judge-1L Kotri, in Civil Appeal No. 24 of 2023, through judgment dated January
31,2024

The Company has filed the present appeal before the High Court of Simdh ot Hydessbad, which i3 pending
pdjudication. The matter has been disclosed a8 2 contingeat lubility in these financial statetents.

The Company is defending a sales fax audit case originally initisted against MYs Wadeem Power Getieration
i Private) Limited, which merged with the Coinpany pursuant fo 4 Court Order dated 31 November 2022, The case
refates to the sales tax sudit for the penod July 2017 to June 2018, conducted under Section 25 of the Sales Tax
Act, 19490,

The tax authorities disallowed input tax aggregating to Rs. 31,368 million on the grounds of non-production of
sales tax records, mcluding inventory details. during the audit proceedings. Consequently, a Show Cause Notice
dated 24 June 2023 was tssued by the Assistant Commissioner Intand Revenue, Unit-00, Zone-Y[, Corporaie Tax
OMfice, karachi, and the matter was finalized through COrder-in-Original Mo, 6744 dated 11 Sepiember 2023,
wherehy recovery of the disallowed amount along with defaul surcharge and penalties was ordered

The Company has filed gn oppeal before the Commissioner Inlend Revenue (Appenls), Karachi which is cwrrently
pending adjudication. Based on the fegal advigor’s opinion, manogement believes that the case will be decided in
the Company s favour; accordmgly, no provision has been recognized in these financial statements,

Commitments 2025 2024

Nuote Rupoes
Leners of credit ssued in respeet off
- import of raw materials ZLﬁISIMH 264i433. 114
Bunk pusraniees w Excise aml Taxation department 152475500 |47.475.753
Pevolving ketter of eredit issoed m favowr of 85GC 91.987.580 91.987.580
Letters of puarantes against
= ENF the Geld (Capiive Power Planis) Levy TA439.274 =

el
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271

272

273

274

SALES - net

Local sales

Export sales - indireet
Export sales - direct
Wastage sales

Raw material sales

Local sales
Local sales revenue - gross
Less: Sales returms

Lt Sales tax

Export sales - indirect
Export sales revenue - gross
Less: Sales returms

Liss: Sales tax

Wastage sales
Wastage sales - pross
Less; Sales tax

Raw material sales
Raw muoterial sales - gross
Less: Sules tax

COST OF SALES

Raw matenals consumed
Conversion costs incurred:

- Fuel and power

- Stores and spares consumed

- Packing materials consumed
- Salaries, wages and other benefits

- Depreciation

- Repair and maintenance
- Insurance

- Other expenses

Change in work-in-process inventory:

- Opening stock
= Closing siock

Cost of goods manufactured
Change in finished goods and waste inventories:

- Opening stock
- Closing stock

274
272

27.3

287

282
283
284
285
416

Maqeem

3,778,902,124 T.321.667.719
1.026,329.750 3.386,130,96]
- 575903173
45,525,833 107,385,654
42,420,634 :
4,893, 178,341 11,390.093.507
4475 462,900 409 855371
(15,785,200) (62,202,500)
4,459,677, 790 #,347.652,87
(680,775,606) (1,025,985,152)
3,778,902,124 7.321.667.719
1,216,241.,%05 3871524680
{5,172,800) (60.933.400)
1,211,069, 105 3,810,551,280
(184,739,355) (424,454,319
1.026,329.750 3.386.136.96]
53,720,483 126,716,769
(8,194,650 (19.331,115)
45,525,833 107,385,654
50,056,313 -
(7,635,679 -
42,420,634 -
3.540,766,893 T.833,507.259
779,537,766 1,254.343.640
148,009,152 193,232,467
57,266,918 143,662,555
574,776,946 780,386,741
199,381,048 225093 585
11,051,279 22,054,029
14,689,717 I5.0018.220)
9,705,804 22983706
1,794,598.660 2.636,774.943
5.335,305,553 10 490,282,202
46,935,774 08450984
(46,467,934) (96,935,774)
50,467 540 1515210
5.385.833.393 10.491.797.412
437,663,740 1, 271,338,092
{403,135,892) (437 663.740)
34,527 044 §33.674,352
5.420,361.241 11.325471. 764

[l
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8.1 Raw materials consumed
Cipening 517.505,937 SR5.319, 746
Addd: Purchases 3 AT0.340,839 7,705, 7RI A4S0
39RT.936,770 BA51.103,196
Closing stock g (447.169,883) (517,595.937)
3.540.766.893 733507259
18.2 Fucl and power
Gas charges 5T5.206.179 112,556,635
Electricity charges 204,331,587 142,780,014
Diescl charges - BTG990
779,537,760 1.254 343,641
283 Stores and spares consumed
Opening stock 227,193,581 201,308,104
Add: Purchases during the vear 71,257,580 209117944
298,451,161 A20,420,048
Closing stock {150,351.979) (227193581}
145,099,182 193,232,467
2025 2024
8.4 Packing malterials consumed Rupees
Opening 27,418,941 22 &R6.IID
Add: Purchases 43,330,400 148, 195 186
70,749,341 171,081,456
Closing stock (13.482,423) (27 418.941)
7,266,918 43,662,553
285 These includs stal retirement benelits amouniing to Rs. 5637 million (2024 R 52,39 million ).
2025 2024
29, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note —  Rupees
Salaries and ather benefits 20 58,377,550 SULA20,463
Directors” remuneration 47 8,400,000 W, 400000
Travelling and conveyanee 13,880,179 14382525
Legal and professional 4,143,171 6,084,069
Fees and subscription 4,317,530 6,443,755
Rent, rates and taxes 1,383,233 1,812,121
Electricity, gas and water 13991121 Gnht 658
Repairs and maimtenance 1527977 13.803.266
Communivation expenses 2,611,387 1.544.090
Printing and sationery 1.491.583 5,190,180
Motor vehicle expenses 18,723,805 24,113,084
Advertisement cxpenses 127.560) 44,150
Enseriainment expenses 3596016 JASE3F
Auditor's remuneration 292 (SR ERT N 1,650,000
Depreciation 406 25,297.26| 26,808,757
Miscellanenus expenses 2,237,307 1.902.433
168,943,720 186026693
291 These inelude stall retivement benefits amounting 1o Bs 4832 mullion (2024: B 439 miflion),
2025 2024
292 Auaditors' remuneration Newde! —— Rupes
Feo for annual audil 1200, 000 12040 00y
Fee for half-vearly review 308,000 ELERNIY
Fee for review of Code of Corpotate Governanee Th,000) T0.000
Other certifications 60,000 60,000
Out-nf-pocket expenses 200, 000 12,000
1838000 JRERLTRAACH]

[£]
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3.

1A

3.2

3.

31

33

DISTRIBUTION COSTS Nete
Sales commission 30
Freighi and octror charges

Foreign trovelling éxpense

Expoat selling exponses

Trailor charges

Cicean freight

Expornt development charges

Sturmp duty on export sales

Export insurance chirges

Miscetianeous 3.2

Sales commission

Cormnenssion charges incurred inorelation to:
- Local sales

- Export sales

2025 2024
Rupees
7,404,272 B3 T50.013
22 140,954 50.2X).658
.67 1,500 11,325,000
LATR.I1R 4,284,517
- 2,782,804
658,646 1 956,549
171016 1,424,693
- Loz2nd1s
- 561049
17081637 18,638,672
BE.606,147 1755988, 320
2025 2024
Rupees
37404271 Ta.240,1499
- 351844
7,404,271 B3 TER613

This includes charpes in respect of stomp duty on local seles letter of eredit expenses, sales promotion, export sl

foreign bank charges and forwarding charges,

OTHER INCOME Nrte

Profit om saving secounts
Profiton Term Depasit Receipes (TOHRS)

Reversal of provision for expected credil losses

Reaitlezed exchange g - net

Cramn on sale of propery, plant and cquipmient - net 443
Reversal of WWF

OTHER EXPENSES

Surcherge on late filing of sales oy retums
Frowision for expoctad credit losses

Prowision npainst slow moving store items
Fealized exchangre loss - net

Loss on disposal of spare parts

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - nel

FINANCE COSTS
Markup on short-term horrowings:
= Cash finanee (CF)
- Bunning fnance (BF)
- Finanee against imported merehandise (F1M)
- Finemee agiinst pecking fninee (FPC)

Markup on long-term financing:
- Term finunce

Premium on discounting of export bills
Tnterest on Workers' Profil Participation Fund

Bank chorges and guarantee commission

2025 2024
Rupees
11,734,836 264564005
27.399,747 602630
39,134,583 37058 6495
1,729,491 24,335,143
- 13,131,235
- 651,086
A1R3ITA50 =
44,696,530 U5 376,161
10,171,598 12,399 149
4,700,000 4, 74% 050
= 650,500
174277 -
1,740,531 %
16,648,759 -
33435765 17,299 644
208,166,742 ATR 303,512
5,710,643 120 B5T 145
91,903,950 73,335,931
21,471,043 3T OTR.52S
410,252,378 SHLS05.112
63,905 247 08 B48,. 703
= 17811454
- B3 446
474,247,065 627,230,716
32,631,230 45 268209
506,878,895 G704 025

[l
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34.

35.

36.
a6

62

37.

38
154

EL AN

LEVIES

Income Lux:

- Excess of minimum tax over posmal s 48.335.607 7905705

- Fimal tax 12,529,122 Y2 63, 167
G0, 164,724 1), T, BT 2

Workers” Welfure Fund - FA30,59]
ol 164.72% 146,195,863
1028 g4

TAXATION Nopg Bupees

Current - for the vear - -

Deferred ] (147.573.431) {79,234 852y

(147,573.431) (79,234,852

Reconciligtion between tax expense and accounting profit

In respect of the yenrs ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2025, the numencal reconciliation between fux
expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied hy the applicable tax rate as required by 1AS 12
Yneome Tares' has not been presented in these financial stalements since (he Company has suffered un
accounting loss before tax in both these vears and its income subject o taxation under the normal tax regime
has atracted the provisions of section 113 of the Tncome Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Minimuem tax),

2ms 2024
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED Rupees
Rasic loss carnings per share
Loss after taxation (1,090,942, 195) {961, 780,6%94)
Mumber of shares
Weighted wverage number of ordinary shares outstanding 21.266.735 21,266,733
Rupees
|oss per share - buasie {56.00) {45.22)

Diluted loss per share

There 5 no difutive effect on the basic loss per share of the Company, since thene wene no potential ardinory
shares 1n 1ssue as ot June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2024,

CASH ANTY CASH EQUIVALENTS

Far the purpose of the ststement of cash lows, cash and cash equividents comprize of the following:

025 2024
Nore Rupees
Cash and bank balances 4 35,009.879 162,240,917
Short term borrowings - running finance 23 (563,042,996) (316,416,980)

(S07.973.117) (334, 176,063)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management

The Bosrd of Dircctors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Companys risk mansgement frumework. The Compony hos exposure to the following risks from its use of
financial instruments,

= Credit risk

= Liguidity risk-

- Murket risk

Credit risk

Credit risk 1 the sk that one party toa financial instrument will cause a finoncial logs for the other party by
falling to discharge an ohligation,

A fimancial seset is reparded a8 credit impaired as and when i€ falls usder the definition of a ‘defaulted’ financial
asset. For the Company’s internal credit management purposes, a Ananciol asset s considered as defaulted
when it is past due for 20 days or more,

The Company writes off a defaulted financial asset when there remains ao reasonable probability of recovering
the carrying amount of the jsget through available means,

el
56}



Maximum exposure fo credit risk

Miate
AL amaortised cost
- Laong term depozits
- Trade dehis &l
- Investments
- Lowuns to staff pnd workers
- [3theer receivables
- Bank balunces B

Nadeemy

Jume 3, 24125 June 30, 2024
Carrying Maximum Camying Minamum
amount EXpASHre AT XTSI
Rupees

J3.303,456 33303450 33303456 33303450
i 4,377 i, 37T 1,504 000 68 | 150 00068 |
177,307,921 177,307,921 172307921 172307921
682,549 RS540 1 OG0 ADS | Ol 4113
13,500,975 13,590,975 IRRI0.403 35450465
40,887,243 AU XET 243 10, 00,247 14, T 247
B84 B0b, 521 884,860,521 1887220 183 1887220183

Nt fad - Credit risk exposure on trade debis
To reduce the exposure w credit nsk the Company s developed o policy of obtaining advence payments from
it customers, The management strictly adheres to this policy.

Export receivables as at vear end are nod past due, The aging of local trade debts as an the reporting diste is as
follaws:

June 30, 2025 Jume 30, 2024

Giross carrving Life time Giross carmyimg Life time

amouni expected ervdil dnaut expected credit
losses oo
Feupees

Mot past dise 437305500 - [ 047, 021 6497 -

Pt due 190 doys 117446602 - 429,501,617 =

Pasd due $1-180 dovs 17.942 999 - B,853 558 -

Past due 181-270 days 9429372 - 2,200,067 -

Past due 271-360 davs 16827969 - 14,096,579 -
Past due mone than 360 diys 11009420 9,957,485 10507 954 2271085
H10,061.862 9,967,485 [.512.271.776 271085

Wage ()« Crodie vivk expesire on baek halanoes

Ihe Company's credit msk on Hgmd funds is Tmited becavyse the counter pariies are banks with reasonably high
credit mtings, Az of the reporting date. the extermal cradit ratings of the Company’s bankers were as follows,

HBnnks Short term rating  Credit rating agency 023 2034
Rupees
Soneri Bank Limited AM- Preri 2,091,303 124,839 9RO
Dbyt Tslamue Bank Lomited A Vis 4,016,076 IHRGT
Meeran Bank Limitesd Al Wis 9,435 587 Tl 878
Habab Bank Limited AlA Wik 6,545,030 | 360,148
IS Bank Limited AA Pacra 51,718 15,118
Matomal Bank of Pokistan AMA Peern 1,515,634 A21,540
Hank Al Habib Limited LY.V, Pizern 1EAE413 222602
Hunk Muoksrsma Limitest BBA- Wis 352,487 A52RET
MOE Bank Limated ANA Paeta 16,749 L7413
Hunk Bstomm Limited AA- Pacro 11,966,224 122638
Askart Bank Limited AAS Pacrn 184,022 R, 53
UBL Bank Limilie A2 Jer-Vis - au.230
BBank Al Faloh 1imised AMA Paern ML6T] ERARE.L
Habib Metropolitn Bonk Limited AA TPocrn 14,974 14,570
United Bank Limited AMA Wis 1MK522 -
Hank of Punjot Limited Ad Pacri 14,274 G, T
Fovsal Bank fimited AA Puorn 10,067,758 =
510,234,843 14, 700,247
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Concentration of credir rivk

Conecentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the
same party, or when counter partics are engaged in similar business activitics, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability o meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economie, political or other conditions, Concentrations of
credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance 1o developments afTecting o particular
industry, As of the reporting date, the Company was exposed to the following concentrations of credit risk:

38.1.2

June 30, 2025 June 34, 2024
Total exposure  Concentration o0 el Total exposure Concentration iy @al
EXpOsure CRpOsLe
Rupees
Trade debts 6HL094,377 335,018,438 S56%a [ 504,000,691 312,673,679 21%
Bank balances 49,887,243 11,906,229 24% 140,700,247 1 24,825,984 RO%
346,924,667 437,503,668

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabililies that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, Liquidily risk arises because of
the possibility that the Company could be reguired to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in
raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity 1s to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 1o
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Company’s reputation,

The following are the contractual maturities of fAnancial linbilities, incloding estimated interest pavments:

Carrying Comraral  Repayahle an Mot barer than  Theeerasls  Sumeathima  {menthres  Lates this chree
amuuni Cohlows  demaml three manths  mosihs (e year yedn jears
Jnme 30, 2005 Ameant in Hx
Lo dere Nnancang includng accrend nurkip AT TS 50K T i 10 LNEE o 54505018 [LAE2 468 4SS TIR [0E 284,175
Lonan from selated panscs A bS0000 &, 050,00 - - - - - -
Loans from direetoss 139,201 800 134,500,000 138,308,000 . - - B -
Traik and ofies |'u:.d1|rt T2 EN TR = A F = . -
Skort term bomrowees mchubmg acorued madne. 120 134333 L0, 138,133 1204.138.333 - - - -
ST AR 104 FA030, 090 et | SSIEIE [DLARDAGE AT 10184175
Carrylag Lomlraciual Hepmalbfeun Mot lnlertban Throedody  Slumonthsto O bo fhree Lader than
Amnt Canlh floy il eamnd thive meaihy il e Vear e thive veiks
Amunnt i He
June 3, 2004
Limg term financing mghuding pecrued markup 00,730 80 e R ERL] L I5RTT G455 000 [MAZAGE  4ESTIRGAD 101294775
Laiaii [t sl sted o 4, RS0 i i 0
Livarss froms alirectors 1 34, 3000000 ARCAE T E]] 135, 300 000
Tradke and oéhier parvinhies Ll S04 517 [RLT R
St term boevowings nliding ace sl nedup 1450 38 pRAURG LR i 1459 335 506 - - - -
4306637 830 4503 310,14 19 0 1) 1 a4 363 S SREOIN . LSRR ARE  ARETIONAT 10l B4TTE

(58] .
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Market risk

Muarket risk is the risk that the value of the Anancial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates or the market price doe to a change in eredit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change n
market sentiments, speculative activitics, supply and demand of securitics and liquidity in the marker, Market
risk comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk,

fu)  Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or foture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign Corrency nsk arses mainly where receivables and
pavables exist due 1o transactions enfered nto foreign currencies, The foreign currency risk of the
Compuany 15 minimal 83 the export bills are mmediately realized via sale 10 bank.  As of the reporting
date. the Company was exposed to currency risk on  payables that are denominated in US Dollars as

Foal liviaes:
June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Rupees L's Dollars Rupess LS Dallar
Foreiym trade payables 50,439,906 177543 23,500 506 ] 84,508

The following significant exchange rutes applied during the year:

2015 2024
Reporting Reporting
Average rate  date rate Average rales date rate
Rupees
PER 10 US Dellar 279,98 284,10 28370 278,80

Sensitivity analysis;

Az of the reporting date, [0% strengthening / (weakening) of the Pak Rupee against the US Dollar would
have reduced [ {increased) the profit before tax of the Company by the amount shown below, This analysis
assumes that all other vartables, in pacticular interest rates. remain constant,

— Rupers —
As at June 30, 2025 5,043,997
Asat June 30, 2024 2356081

fh)  Tmtevest vate risk
[nterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from shor and
long term borrowings from banks and term deposits with banks,

Fair value sensitivity of flved-rate finaneiad instraments

As the reporling date, the Company did not hold any [xed-rate Onancial assets and Habilities,
Accordingly. a change in interest rates would not affect the carrying amount of any financial instrumenis.

Icol
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Cash flow sensitivity of variahle-rate fTnancial instrments

At the reporting date, the profile of the Company’s variable-rate financial instruments was os follows:

Effective Interest rte (%) Carrrying amount (Rs.)
20235 2024 20258 2024

Financial assets

Balances held in saving accounts T.5%-19% 14.25%-20% Z4.080,130 118,190,483

Financial liabilities
4.5% - 3. 4%
T0%%-20.24%

4.5 -2391%
22.11%0-24.60%

S86.2 18,165
2352 AT1.500

Long-ferm financing
Short-tem borrowings

46l 280,627
2,122,594,650

The following information summarizes the estimated effects of 1% hypothetical inereases and decreases in
interest mates on cash Tows from (nancial assets and fnancial linbilities that are sobject W0 interest nte
visk. It is assumed (hat the changes oecuy immediately and uniformly 1o cach catcgory of instrument
cantaining imterest rate risk, The hypothetical changes in market rates do not reflect what conld be deemed
st ar worst case scenarios. Variations in marker interest rates could produce significant changes at the
time of carly repayvments, For these reasons, actual resules might differ from those reflected in the details
specified below. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant;

Inerease ! {decresse) on liss belire ax

1% decrease in
interest rate

1% increase in
inferest rate

Rupees
As an June 30, 2025
Cash flow sensitivity - Vanable-rate financial imstruments 15,541,991 (23541991
Asoar June 30, 2024
Cash flow sensitivity - Varinblesrate financial instruments 28204302 (2R.704.393)
I8.2 Financial instruments by category
38.2.1  Financial assets 2025 2024
At amortized cost
Long term deposits 33,303,456 33303 456
Treade debts 6,094 377 LA04 000,691
Investments 177.307.921 172307621
Loans o stafl and workers hE2.540 1,060 403
Oithier receivables 2.590.975 35 856,465
Cash and bank halances 55,060,870 |R2.240 917
Ho, 0449 157 1,928,769 853
38.2.2  Financial liabilities
At amortized cost
Long term financing 460,280,627 SR6.21E. 166
Loan from related party 46,650,000 34,450,000
Loan from director 139,300,000 | 34 SO0 0
Trade and other pavables T13.332,670 LO61LS8RSLT
Acerued mark-up 94,054,624 | 34096047
Shaort term horrowings 2,0 22,598,650 2.352411.500
35T0,216.571 4,304,437,830)
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19. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIARILITIES

Fair value i the price that would be reccived to sell am asset or paid to transfer-a lability inoan orderly
iransaction between market participants at the measurement date, Comsequently, differences can anse between
carrying values and the fair value estumates,

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and habilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their
fair values.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1:  Quoted market price {unadjusied) in an active markel.
Level 2: Valuation technigques based on observable inputs.

Level 3: Valuation lechniques vsing significant unobservable inputs. This calepory includes all instruments
where the valuation technique includes inpuis not based on observable data,

Presently, items in the financial statements that are carried at fair valoe are leasehold land, factory building and
non-factery building, On a pericdic basis, the Company engages an independent external valuer to carmy oul.a
fresh revaluation of these operating fixed assets to ensure that their camying amounts in the fingneial statements
do ot differ materially from that which would be determined using fuir villue a1 the ¢nd of the reporting period,
Such valuation wsually involves the use of observable and unobservable inputs: however, the weightage of
observable inputs used is considered as significant. Accordingly, the Company classifies the aforesaid classes of
operating fixed assets within Level 2 of the fair value hicrarchy,

The management considers that the carrying amount of all other assets und Liabilities recognised in the finsncial
statements approximate their fair value.

40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The management's policy is to maintain a strong capital base 5o a8 to malntain investor, creditor and market
ecomfidence and to sustain foture development of the business. The management closely monitors the retim on
capital along with the level of distributions 1o ordinary sharcholders. The management seeks o mainkain a
balance between higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Company is not subject to-any externally imposed capital reguirsment.
Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Company manages as capital:

2025 2024
Borrowings: Rupees

Long terin financing

460,280,627

586,218,166

400,280,627 580218, 166
Shareholders' equity:
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 212,667,350 212,667,350
Coniribution from associated undertaking 340,000,000 2400, 00, (0
Loan from direciors 192,000,000 v
Share premiuin IBH.6H3.536 B HEIIIA
Unappropriated {loss) / profits (603,904,577 573,452,787

529,440,009 1514 803,673
Total capital managed by the Company YH9 716,636 2,001,021 839
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41. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2025 2G4
Clilef Directors  Executives Tatal Chael Drectors Executives Total
Executive Excvutive
Rupee
Manngerinl remueeniticn S A0, 000 Liooood  LeHELIM 243TLISG 3 AL LM | LE71a2 19,251.042
Other albowanees aml
renminirsable gxpenses w0 140,008 140,270 w1170 (AN CHI 240,004 1,824,727 2604727

i, (01, Bk Loimioa  1AUETA00 35382400 &, DY LA i) (L e L . TRl L

Mumber of persens I 2 (8] ., d B
41.1 The Chicf Exceutive and two directors are provided with the Companv-maintained cors as well as electricity,

gas and telephone connections ot their residence.
41.2 The Chief Executive and directors have waived their meeting fees.
42, TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of M/s, Nadeem International {Private) Limited, key management personnel (mcluding
ditectors) and their close farmily members, Detail of transactions entered into, and balanees held with relaed
parties, ather than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

Busis of Transactions during the vear
Name of the related party relationship and year-cnd balances M5 a4
Rupees
Madeem International Assot iated company Traasiactinns during the veay
{Prava) Limited by virtus of commnog Lan received 20,500, 0 11,706, 00Kk
irectorship Lain repaid £.200,000 15,830,006k
Welght bridie expenses - 1400, K
Contribution from associated - -
undertiking
Helanee oty tanding
Loan payable 46,x50,(M0 34,450,000
Mr. Zahid Mirehiar Chiel Executive OiTicer  Transactions durlng the vear
Lasun peceaved 131,008, 0 RRI
Loan repaid - -
Balance ausignding
Laun payable 2127.0600,0M0 45, L0
hir, Chiser Bin Zahid Execntive DirectorCFO Transaciions durieg the vear
Lain received - -
Lasian repatial - -
M. Hazan Bin Zahid Executive Directon Trisactions during the veor
Loun recenved - .
Laoun repaid - 11,300, (0K
Hatance antstanding
Loun pasyable 4,300,000 4,300,000
Ms, Maila Zahid Chairpersen Framsactions during the year
Laoun recemved LN UK T A, D0 DEKE
Matance sutsianding
Loun payable 100,000,000 40,000,100
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4.1

Nadeemy

These Ginancial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reporlable segment as the Company's assel
aflocation decisions are based on o gingle, miegrated business strategy, and the company's performance is
evaluated on wn overall basis:

OPERATING SEGMENT

Entity wide information with respect 1o IFRS-% "Operating Scaments” are stated below!

(a) Mevenue from ssles of yarn represents 98.21% (2024: 99.06%) of total revenue wheress remaining
represent revenue from sale of waste:

(b All non current assets of the Company as al June 30, 2025 are located in Pakisiun,
(e 21% sules of the company relate 1o customer outside Pakistin (direct and indirect export) (2024 35%),

fd) There is no major customer that amount (o more than 10% of the company's revenue exceluding sales ta and
federal excised duty.

GENERAL 2025 2024

Plant capacity and actual production

Total number of spindles installed 72234 77112
Average nombers of spindle worked 23,393 449,612
Number of shifts worked per day 3 3
Installed capacily alter conversion into 20/s count (kgs.) 17,938,907 25.132.912
Actual production after conversion itk 2005 count (kgs.) Q.2211.5M 19833, 585
Capacity utilisation 5141 TiLS0%

The present normal eapacity of the Company's manufacturing facilitics is to produce 49,148 kgs of 2001 yam per
day. The above diselosed annual production capacity of 17,938 million kgs of vam is based on 365 operating days
A year,

Actual production is less than the instlled eapaeity due to gap between market demand and supply.

2025 2024
Number of cmployees
Total employees of the Company at the year end G 1575
Average emplovees of the Company during the vear 1,098 1375

Reclassification of corresponding figures

In these financial statements, the following comresponding figures huve been rearranged and reclussified, for the
purposes ol comparison and betier presentation,

Reclassified from component Reclassitied to component Rupees
Creditors - Local Accrued expensces 25.000
(Trade wined other payable} { Trade and otler pavable)

Advanece o Supplier Creditors - Local 2354485
Loy aned advances) {Teade and other payealic)

Advance from customer Oither Liabilitics IR.654

i Trade and other payvable)

{ Trade and ather pavabiic)

2l
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45, SHARIAH COMPLIANCE STATUS DISCLOSURE

P B 2034
Carried nnder Carrled umdar
D futint Mo - shariah Slarkaly i - sharinh Shuriah
R WrrEngemnsni ETANSeINnis arrangeiment arrangeiments
Hupees

Sratement of fnancizl poasithon
Advanee e emnpliyess - HHE 540 - 1 0kl 4153
Addvance 1o supplicns - 458X 570 - 2T HRETIY
Uthers revedvables L RREE T Ihnht N6l 22, 140002 13 46k AR5
Lz toen diapusiita - AX 303 450 - A3301 456
Bank baluiges A5, 445047 14,441 5% T SEH (KRN R
Long term financing JoS0ETIT - 448453 ARF G2 FE, 00
Lumg terrm fritancing - cuarrent pottion L3, TTh 1D - 137,764,703
Show! lerin bamroivimpes 1,711,508 650 RLLTRITERITA 1L9R2.23 0,500 ATO200, 00
Aalvnnee fivm customers - 4,052 192 - 25814014
Lann [Tom assocnited coempany = At S0 0 - 4 A4S0,
Acrured madogp on short and lone ferm Annnciog 0054024 - F30 460 647 -
Laan Cromm diectors - 139,300, 000 - [ 34,300, 0ok
Imcomi
Revense Earned - A EII_1TR 4L - L1359 8, 507
Profit on srving aeceunts I 134543 - R R L
Relationship with banks

Non Islamic Islamic window
Name of banks :

windaow vperations

Sonar Bank Limited o X
[ubai Islamie Bank Limited x ¥
Maevan Bank Limited & o
Habib Bank Limiared ¥ =
T8 Bank Limited v %
WNational Bank of Pakistan v x
Bank Al Habib Limited v S
Bank Mokramial Limited x ¥
MUB Bank Limited v =
Bank lslami Limited x L
Askan Bank Limited v =
Bank Al Falah Limited x v
Habits Metropolitan Bank Limited v %
United Bunk Limited v v
Bank of Punjab Limited x v
Fuyzal Bank limited ® ¥

45.1 Date of authorieation for issue

These Mnancial stafements were multhorised for issue by the Board of Direclors of the Company in their meeting
held on MNovember 03, 2023,

452 Level of rounding

Figures in these financial staiements have been rounded ofT to the nearest mipes

Sf‘ffi e AU VoK,

Omer Bin Zahid Omer Bin Zahid
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
Karachi: November 05, 2025
™ 64l =
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025
NUMBERS OF SHARE HOLRDING i i

SHAREHDLDERS FROM 0 TOTAL SHARES HELD | PERCENTAGE
18 Shareholding from 1 to 100 shares 127 0.0a
15 Srareholding from 101 \E] 500 shares 6,263 003
2 Shareholding from 501 to 1000 shares 1,683 0.01
1 Shareholding trom 150001 1o 155000 shares 153,852 o.72
1 Shareholding from 175001 w0 180000 shares 170,477 0.Rd
1 Shareholding from 505001 to 510000 shares 506,806 138
1 Shareholdmg from 635001 to 890000 shares BEb, 352 323
1 Shareholding from 710001 to 715000 shares 712934 1.35
1 Shareholding trom 715001 1o 720000 shares f1b, 700 3.37
1 Shareholding from 2305001 to 2310000 shares 2,306,349 10.84
1 Shareholding from 2515001 to. 2520000 shares 2,518,197 11,84
1 Shareholding from £140001 to 4145000 shares 4,144,171 15.49
Fi Shareholding from 4665001 to 4670000 shares 9,334,810 43.89

46 21,266,735 1o

* Note: The slabs representing NIL holding have been omitted,
[sre | CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS | MURMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS [ SHARES HELD | PERCENTAGE |

Diractors, Chief Executve Officer their g 17,477 508 8185

Spoase and minor children
Associated Comparies, undertaking and

z related parties 2
3 NITERICP . 2 =
Bank [ Financial Institutions, Non Banking
A Financial Institutions . i -
5  Modarbas and Mutual Funds - -
& Sharehodders holding 10% 1 2,306,345 10.84
7 General Public
Local 6 1532877 T2
Forelgn - . -
& Other Companies - - -
45 11,166,735 100.00
Infarmation regpuired under the Code of Corporate Govermance
SR Categories of Shareholdess Percantage W 1:;'“““
&) Associated compéanles undertakings and related parties 0.00 -
B} DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AMD THEIR SPOUSES AND MINO# CHILDREN
DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSES
MR ZAHID MAZHAR 1%.489 4,144 171
MA. DMER BiN ZAHID 1184 4 G6RA,020
MR HASSAN Bit ZaHID 2195 4,668,730
RS, HAILA ZAHID 11.84 4.518,197
MRS ANAM OMER 337 T15,70:&
MRS, SHAFIA HASSAN 335 712,934
MR NODR MUHAMBMAD 0.0 500
MR WADAR HASSAN SID0ICaLI 0.00 500
MR NADEEM AHMED 0.0 693
Cl  NITE&ICP 0.00 -
O} Banks, development financial institutions, non banking financial imstitutions 0.00 -
Ei MODARARAS AMD MUTUAL FLINGS 0.00 -
Fl  SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE VOTING INTEREST
RARAH TAHID 1084 3308,349
G) GEMERAL PLIRLIC
il Local 7. 1532877
il Foreign 0.00 -
HY  OTHER COMPANIES 0.00 =
TOTAL 100, 0 11,266,735
Iy SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE VOTING INTEREST
MR, Z8HID MAZHAR 19.48 4,144,171
WA, ORER BIN ZAHID 11.94 4,666,020
WA HASSAMN BIN ZAHID 11.95 4,668,790
MAS, NAILA ZAHID 1184 1,518,197
_j] DETAIL OF TRADING IN THE SHARES BY THE DIRECTORS, CEQ, COMPANY SECRETARY AND NIL NiL

THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN

Izl
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Key features:

2 Licensed Entities Verilication

e Scam meter*

M Jamapun)i games”

B Tax credil calculator®

& Company Verification

B insurance & Invesimont Chocklis!
» FAQs Answored

d o BFRE &

Be aware, Be alert,
Be safe

Learn about investing at
www. jamapuniji.pk

Slock trading simulator
{based on live leed from KSE)

Knowladge conler
Rink profilor*
Financial calculator

Subscription o Alerts (aven
notifications, corporate and
regulatory aclions)

Jamapunjl npplication for
mobile devicn

Online Quizzos
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Form of Proxy

I'We

of heing
a member of MADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
ordinary shares as per Registered Folio No./CDC A/C Mo. (for members who have shares in CDS

herety appaint Mr./Mrs./Miss

of
or failing him/her MrJ/Mrs./Miss

of

who isfare member/s of the Company) to act as my/our Proxy and to vote for mafus and on mylour behalf at tha
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 27th November, 2025 and/or any adjournment thereaf.

Signedi this day af 2024,
Falio CDC Participant | CDC Account/ Na. of Shares
Mo, ID Mo, Sub-Account No. hald Signature on
Rs.50/~

Revenue Stamp

Witness 1 Witness 2
Signature Signature
Mame Marme
CMIC Mo, CHNIC No.
Address Address
Moles:

1 This form of proxy, duly completed and signed, must be deposited at the office of the company's Shares Registrar,
not later than 48 hours before meeting.

2 This form should be signed by the Member or by histher altorney duly authorized in writing. If the member
is a corporation, its common seal should be affived to the instrumeant.

3 A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint any ather Member as his‘har Proxy
to attend and vole on hisfher behalf except that a corporation may appoint a person who is a Member.

For CDC Account Holders/Corporate Entitles:
In addition to the above following requirements have to he met:

i. The Proxy form shall be witnessad by two persons whose names, address and CNIC Numbers shall
be mentioned on the form.

ii, Aftested copies of CNIC or Passport or the beneficial ownears and proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form.

ili. The proxy shall produce hisfer original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the maeting,

iv. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of altorney with specimen signalure
shall bie submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form.
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